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.1970

.2023>ND2 23 DA NIAND PNVPIT YT HY DIDIAD YIVIN DITNIRNDN D2 BMIDIN MNYTN NINNN

I8N Y0 MY yavn A
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NPANT ,NNYTA .9IN) PP WNINHD MAP D OIPYY IWN 92T ,MIva MDD 29N IN MMI) 291 N MNVIDNLN
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: MNNDN

N NYHYIY NOMIN MINSIN
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:(D»YIN DINIDD 9 HY) WINY DN NMNAPNNNM DIDININ DY NN MW PND

N7y 939999193

2 DTN NI DIIIN

24 DYMINNX DN NIMPY
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85 @) oo
555 (5) "IN 5N

NPALNY PYWIIN DY ONPNNN YV NN MNMYN NX on»YY IFRS 3-1 nopnn nx ow»d nana n¥apn (1)
-0 NV MDIINN DY) 13 DY NON SNDA NY PIYN T DY TINN NN MNYN TN 090 Hnvn
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D1 NN YIRINN NP NV TN DNYNN YPNN TN PA,00IMITHN 2D3IN NNINNY DI IVN IWUN
TIY SY )AVNI NNAN TIN,NYOIN TNHD DNV 27 - 79 DY DINNNY DINNNN DY0IN .8.75%-8% SV
SVIDOYN DPNN TIINR DINT NAN IOY

YW DN I NN DY NPV NI ONDA PYPIPN INRNY MYNNNI YIAPI YPIPN DY NNN NN (2)
.8% Hv )N

YOI TN TIND WD MRNDNN DOV MIND - (3)

DN MON NIND BOY 1N NIDN TIND MDA HY 1PXI1DN NN GPYN DOPOYN NPY NNDN INNY POINND  (4)

-92 NI YNNIV NIIYY TPNTI 1NN NADINA NIY 1P 270-5 DY TOA 91302 DIYWN N NN (5)
NTY YOI 285

7Y 93999993
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(0299131 'nba) 2023 ¥912 31 DY DITHIND D2 DAV MNNT NXNNY DINN’A

(TuNnn) M2 MHaN - 6 PN
(Tunn) HNIY> N

O NPOY - NYPYI NIIN NPV NPYY .2

172NN, 03T IYPNN N2 NYPYM (NI NN DIDII NI2YN) NI NPY NPDY NHHYIN 2023 NI WTINA
YDIAIND DYTNN 192NNN DD WD NNNDNI L(NIANN DY NRDND MTYI2 N2 NHAN) HRIY D.99.IN)
NP NXRIYPNY NNHBNI NOION OH NTIPO MNNNY DORNNA DNN NV NIRINN NMIYII NN DN

.NMYYIA2 12N HRIW? YD.9.IND

2,98 YDIAIND JPON NIX PTOND DTN 172NN P2 NPINN DY DIDN PDPINY DIDN ONNY ,JD 1D
NPIND TNV TPININY TNYN NPODM NY» HY DINNA NI2ND IMDYS Y95 Npoyn NNSWn TN Snnv
-5 HY 0 YR YDI9IND DTN NN ,NPOYN NNOVN TN )0 105 ORI YD 9 IN DY INDNN NMDYa1a
NYPYNN TO NI2YN THD AWRD L(NT 10N DMNODN DAIPNI 9N NN MNNNN VIV INRD) DY YPDIN 452
TO 9D PN INIYW YDO9IN DY PANNIN INNNY 20% DTN INPIN DM MIINA DY HY PNMOT NNHNN
YPRYNY DY MRNON YWY SPHN NV TNXD DN DX YOI NNNXD NYPYNN D120 TINN N7Y 119 400 Hv
NPOYN NN )0 10D (OPMHVYN MNYTY 2725 TN INT DDDN DXVIY) 2021 MV DNIY DTN NI1aNN
D) DN YD9INRD DYIAYINN DIDIIN NAVY NN THYN INA NTRYN 1NN NN 2)D OITON WIAP)
DY WP MWD NNOWND DO DITINN ,NMITN NN TYIND .NIIND HIMPY MNNRD NIMITY )2 MY TN

.NPOYN NNIOYN INKRD MPINNN NI2ID DNNRNM NITNY DX MIN NN DY 1IN ITON

NOYYY NNPH PPNY NPIDIN YA Oy NPOY 10 IFRS 10 mMXIND ONNN2 DT NPOYI INNIVNN 919900
YORY NMDT PYDA DYTIN P20 NN DTN DAPNNY YITNN PAY WIANN DI DXNNA ,NVIOY MY TN
VDY NNPN PPRY NMDT DY MRPOYN NN 1IPY 9P NOOY NIPN
MYIHNND NHPININ 9N - 2709 .a
Mountain Wind 099 minn NY99 = M1 NNPH INRY YIINY DIPOY PPy .1

NoN neoqY ooona CPV nxiap mavpnn 9272 ,07mwn 0»90on MMTY 1229 91N NNIND Tunna
021 ,("Mountain Wind VP»197 - 19N9) N NININ MYSNNA DHYN NX1Y MDY MD NHNN YIINI NMOTN
0YWN ™5 ,Mountain Wind vi?»192 1511 X19n NX 192 CPV n¥apy npoyn nnbenn 2023 91981 5
DY099Y .(NT NON DMIODNA DAIPND MNRNN WX INND) (AT 11D 175-3) N1 1) 625-5 DY TO2 NN
L2/R7 N2 INT,ININD NNNNN PON D0 Wdw 2023 57981 6 D1 DNNIY ODONLPMI NI DODN I2TA

112NN 5195n 72295 rodpoy 'y [TFRS 3 mn1n oxnna N9 Mountain Wind vp»19 bw nwoan
YOI DXNININ DX0IN DY INNN NN NN, NPOYN NIOWN TN ,2023 MY DY MWD 1I¥270 019050 PNIMTa
Mountain Wind vp"19 v poINNM

DX NMMIONNN DX0Y NYIIN MY DINY NN 192N7 NPOYN DIV DMV NMINTN NN TIIND Ty
PYN NN NS .DMODON MMTN MYIN TYIND Y DXPOYN NP TVINND GONY INPN YT P9 IND NNRY
AN 999 295 DINNIN LY WIALIY DIMNNY DN 1IN 19NN OPYIN PYTY INNN MNYN 2NN

: (D»YIN DYDIYD DRNNA) IWINY DM NMNNNI DD DY NN MWD oD
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NNPNI .DNY 3 DY MNAX DMN TINY 3.77% DY NP0 NIDN M NWY ,28% DY Jpnin NV Yy ooann (OPM)
AN DI 9-5 HW O 2022 DY NYNIN 1YAIL) N7Y 11D 5-3 5Y TOI MIRNIN NNIDIND )2 INWN MTN

-5 YRYN NVDY NNPN IPOXRY NPIDT MDY NIANND ,MITH NNMPNA ,DMOMVN MINITY /K25 7N MINY Tunna )

103-5) N7 P 370-5 HY TO2 MIXNOM MMV N2 Mypvn (P2pyay pavna) OPC Power Ventures LP

NYOIN TN .MOIMYA DNPMIPIND DNYD DNNNA,NNNNNA (YT 11D 32-5) NY 1190 115-5 5¢ TOY (91T 1990

-9) Y PYIN 215-5 HYW D10 NTHNI DXOMWN KD DY DYDYIN MNNDN NTHYM NYPYIN m’u”nng mmb,m-rn
(AT Y9 60

MTN NPNI NM NMATIY , 1IN MDNX ,DMINNRY DPRPIA DXTIRND IRIYRL NMNNANTD 1272 DXODN DV T
7 N2 IND TPINKN

.8 NN INT INKD MTN NAPNI MINK NMAPNNM , YN, NMMIYPNNI MMNNINT I2T2 DXDN DOVIAD .1
1726 N2 XY MTN NMPN INXY Mountain Wind man nunmn nyo1 91711 00790 )

PPN MY DY 1991H2 NI (PN91INY — 19NY) NID NNNN DN MYNNNI NXIAPN NI 2023 O802 10 0P .3
YNNI DNVYN NINY ONIPNN NNPNY PYPIPNI NN NPIDT AWIDID INIMNY NONY (71997 — 9D INIW
MINY PIYYNT NIMPNRN NXVIND DINNA DMINNND NYIZYD DN NN 2DPWA THPRVIN-IVID MNIDNOVI NYTNNND
72y N7Y NP 484-0 HYW TOY ,N208HT ,MNONDNI 171503 NXIAPN MYNN .ONT 2,270 -5 DY 12081 9902 ,12IN
39902 DMINNNN NWVHY

1991D2 MANNWNN DY WP (1) : ©NPNNNNN TNR YD DN NI 19INI DDIY MYNNN BIID 119191 ININD DXNNA
ONNNAIWN, (N7 1D 15 57N1D) 399501 RIWI OMINNNNN TNX DI DN NYY 119 5702 MY NXIAPN NPNRYN
DN 7 NYTIN TYINN D 90 TINA (2) ;1902 IINXI PNYNRIN DIYWNNN INNNN 71D DY WD 11007 MNINY
01501 20% INNKN OO0 DIYWND 1952 ,19901 YINDNI NYIAPIV NPNY M7NHTN NONN P2 PNIONY INYIN DOON
ANN (WINNY 599) LPNION NN DYPND 1N NNIDNY NYTN INNND NION YW NNWINX OY (3) ; ONNN DO NYNIN
DIOD MM DVWN THD NNXT ,0/0PMI9T NOYIM NNPN TNXY DOUNIN 11-) 0NV 24 S NNPNY NPON MIO0N
AWy NI (NTUNRIN DDWNN) NYNNN 01900 20% 15,9721 .ONNN YO NYSNN DI0N 80% 0P ,0NNN DO NYNNIN

779N 33501 YNNI NIYVIND 15N 1515702 RO D/0P2)1790 PNON NN YIPHN DN GN NONY

NVND DN 1INV D/0PI9N NNYYND MYITI MWD IN MNIDN ,DYNLIN M MXTN PR ,NITN NN TVIND
.DMINNNIN
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nYa) 2023 ¥92 31 DY OITHIND D2 DAV MNNT NIXNNY DINN’A

DPMIN MY MIN HY D90 MNT 919N - 11 NN

5w Valley 5v 0»»a 099050 MNYTH 1O8HN NN NIX DYTNIRD 0PI DMIDD MMNT TPNNND NN N¥IIAPN
US GAAP-n mnxnn M1 (7nymnn Mmoo mnan” - Yonb) Fairview 5w 0»9050 mnn nosnn Ny Towantic
0905 MMT TN NN 192NN BDIAN 172NN NS MIAPY TIY M) MY DID NN ono maxnn IFRS-5

.2023 512 30 DYDY 1Y 2023 Sw WD WA Fairview b o»»a

SV D»IDON MNYT DY NPINN NYATI XD 27NN POIMDIN P19 oxrNN2 ,CPV nyiap nbrpw »0avwn \iv»H ornNna
SV NPPD MT OMON NI DXINDIND DNIXNND YT IWIN DANXNN DAV MNTI,NPMNNND MO MIaNN
.DP2NN PIAYNN ONIN

AT Y 3,615 10 MTN TYIND POYONN YW 29T I NPMNNKN MIDON MNINN DY MISNN MOYaN yaon

oY WX, (US GAAP) 27072 D920 NMINNIWN 7PN %95 DYDY NPMNND MNYIN MIINN DY DD MNYTH
2¥ NPMNNN MNDIN MIIND DY DMIDIN MNITY 1DV MNNNN 1272 ¥ Yno IFRS-n »pnn 0ymmon 01)11ma
.172NN DY DIRNAVNN NPPTNDY D955 DRIRNND TN

Valley

DODN NOIRNY NPNIPY MNOONY Valley ny»in mdINKDY NYTH NOPNA ,D1ONIVN MMTY 7726 1IN MINNY TwHna
SV NPYN ,A0YT PO 415-5) N7Y TINIDIA 1.5 -5 MITN TYINY 1NIMY MIRNDNY DN 1Y S1INN DY TNY NI
YNNI 31 OPY TY IRNDNN IV TN NIIND (K) : NIINNN MNIN MPOY 1oND 2023 12 30 D2 N ,(50% i CPV
55 -3) N D) 200-52 2NN 9PN NNND (3) 197 ;5.75% -35 IRNONN DY HOPIWNN 7N NN NITY (1) ;2026
VOO 17 -5 ,n7Y 1P 60 -5 NINND DYDYIAN NN NIANN DY NPYN) DIDYI NN MYSNNI 7P, (VT PN
YN, D10 D¥INDN DY NINN DMINHND DINIYIN NP NIMN NHDXHN DION NIIND ,NYTH NN TND (1917
S NNRD TYIND NN XY NOIRNN ¥IHDDN 12 NIPN2 I PIN 2023 DY »wWin )1vaI0 0IN 1Y oMax CPV nomn noavnd
DALY MPOYaN NYY DINITHN MIIIN DY THINDN 2023 M2 30 DY ARNDNN NN 1192 N Valley » »ay Nt PN
M0 MTIN NN DO 2023 ¥IN2 31 oo Valley CPV Valley Holdings, LLC Y £9»9050 mnyTn ,08NN2
MMNRN MDDV ,MTN NN TIND .NOVW NNDYHN DIDN 19 DY PIMDNNN NX Y119 Valley bv nnovs mwpn

Valley bv1 n¥1apn 5¥ npvivonn N1avon MXNIND YY Iyawn PR
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nYa) 2023 ¥92 31 DY OITHIND D2 DAV MNNT NIXNNY DINN’A

(TYUNN) HPMNN MY MHAN HY 09D MNNT 91N ~ 11 NI

(1Tvnn) Valley
$9909N 28NN DY MT

2023 N4 31 09

IFRS MNINNN US GAAP

49994 99N 49994 99N 9991 %9983
618,323 (162,678) 781,001 7,3 ,X Vap vidg
- (20,437) 20,437 T D»YMN MND1 00
75,747 - 75,747 DINN DY0D)
694,070 (183,115) 877,185 0V 27N
11,215 (1,423) 12,638 N TINTI NINXIN OXNDT M
464,170 - 464,170 MAINN NMIAMNNN
475,385 (1,423) 476,808 MNANNNN 27N
218,685 (181,692) 400,377 )N DX9MY PN
694,070 (183,115) 877,185 19 MNAMNNN 27N

2022 ¥4 31 o9

IFRS MNINNN US GAAP

9917 *ahNa 9917 *ahNa 4917 2abNa
624,096 (180,901) 804,997 1,3 N P vidg
- (14,526) 14,526 T D»YMN YND1 00
124,609 - 124,609 DINN DY0D)
748,705 (195,427) 944,132 002 27N
18,415 (1,487) 19,902 N MINTI NINXIN OXNROT MIN?
575,489 - 575,489 MANN NMINNN
593,904 (1,487) 595,391 MNANNHNN 27N
154,801 (193,940) 348,741 )N DX9MY PN
748,705 (195,427) 944,132 P MHNAMNNN 2710

2022 9284743 31 09Y

IFRS NNINNN US GAAP

9997 999N 9997 999N 9991 %9983
620,768 (165,597) 786,365 71,3 N VAP vida
- (20,604) 20,604 T D»WYNIN YNYI DOV
116,963 - 116,963 DMNN OX0D)
737,731 (186,201) 923,932 [=2avi ) B=2dn 1]
30,366 (1,409) 31,775 N MNTI NIRNIN OINDT MIN
518,259 - 518,259 MAINN NMIANNN
548,625 (1,409) 550,034 MNANNNN 2700
189,106 (184,792) 373,898 )N DX9MY PN
737,731 (186,201) 923,932 1 MNAMNNN 27/ND
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nba) 2023 ¥992 31 DY DITNIND DI DAV MNNT NINNNY DINN’A

(TYUNN) HPMNN MY MHAN DY DIV MNT §HY - 11 N

2023 ¥4 31 0’2 NNPNVAY DIUNN DYDY DY Napny

Valley
$INN D9 AN TOSM NN DY NIN'T

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9917 'aYNa 9997 'aYNa 9997 *abNa
77,918 - 77,918 moIdn
35,125 (1,423) 36,548 NPOIWON MINNIN
4,838 (1,677) 6,515 MNNSM NN
37,955 3,100 34,855 YO NN
7,593 (1,534) 9,127 DD NINKIN
30,362 4,634 25,728 n9YPNY NN
(783) (1,534) 751 D) 0PI OXPYIN - INR KD (TDIN) NN
29,579 3,100 26,479 9PN Y55 NNA
2022 Y912 31 012 AN1PHVIY DIYNN DYVIIY HY 19PNy
IFRS MNXNN US GAAP
9917 29N 9917 29N 4917 2abNa
115,761 - 115,761 moon
72,268 (1,487) 73,755 NPOIYAN NINNIN
49,758 (1,677) 6,435 MNNSM NN
38,735 3,164 35,571 yan NNA
6,086 (1,749) 7,835 DD NINKIN
32,649 4,913 27,736 N9YPNY NN
3,358 (1,749) 5,107 DI DO DXPWIN - INNK YD (T091) NI
36,007 3,164 32,843 n9YPNY Y915 ANA
2022 929873 31 092 NNINDNY MIYY
IFRS MNXNN US GAAP
99Y1 'a9Na 9991 'a9Na 9994 *abNa
405,548 - 405,548 MdN
291,042 (5,603) 296,645 NPLIVON NMINSIN
19,005 (6,709) 25,714 MNNSM NN
95,501 12,312 83,189 Myan NNA
26,367 (6,546) 32,913 DD NINSIN
69,134 18,858 50,276 Y5 N9
1,178 (6,546) 7,724 D)) DI DXPYIN - INNK Y9I (TON) NN
70,312 12,312 58,000 Y5 9919 NN
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nYa) 2023 ¥92 31 DY OITHIND D2 DAV MNNT NIXNNY DINN’A

(TYUNN) HPMNN MY MHAN DY DIV MNT §HPY - 11 N

2023 ¥4 31 0’2 NNPNVIY DIUNN NYITY DY Napny

Valley
: DMIITHN DN DY NYTO NMIMNND MNNNN

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
49994 99N 4999 99N 9991 %9983
30,362 4,634 25,728 3,2 ,N NMPNY NN
35,984 - 35,984 NOVIV MY YAV IV DINNINH
19,763 19,989 (226) N NYPYN (MDOYSY WNIVY) MDIYIN WAV IV DOINNIN
(44,720) - (44,720) PO MDOYAT WNIYY 1D DN
11,027 19,989 (8,962) DMNITN ONYI DNMITN IV (POIP) 91T
1,187 1,042 145 n N9PNN NYINND DANINIVI MY DININD NI
- (57,680) 57,680 n NPNN NYINND DY DM/ NN
12,214 12,122 92 n N9PNN IVY DN MY DIV NI
- (48,771) 48,771 n NOPNN PNOY DDANN DN NI
2022 ¥4 31 D2 NNONVIY DIUNN IVITY YV Napny
IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9917 'aYNa 9917 'aYNa 9997 *abNa
32,649 4,913 27,736 3,2 ,N NMPNY NN
23,180 - 23,180 NAVIV MY IYAIY IV DINNIN
(17,725) (13,383) (4,342) n NYPYN MDYA0 1WNRIWY V) DIMITN
(3,093) - (3,093) 11270 MDOYAY WYY 10) DINNND
2,362 (13,383) 15,745 DNITND ONYI DNDITN VI (PVIP) 91T
279 181 98 n NMPNN NYINND OIMITD N DINMIH NN
- (76,390) 76,390 n NMPNN NYINNY DDIAND DI NI
2,641 2,543 98 n N9PNN IDY DM MY DI NN
- (92,135) 92,135 n NPNN IO DYANN DNININD NI
2022 9251871 31 02 NNV NY NIYY
IFRS NNINNN US GAAP
9911 2abNa 9911 r2abNa 9911 vabNa
69,134 18,858 50,276 3,2 ,N Yo P
62,497 - 62,497 NAVIV MDY IYAIY IV DININH
8,345 19,571 (11,226) N NYPYN (MDY WNIWY) MmOyan 1yaIv 10 DINNINH
(69,934) - (69,934) NI MDOYAT WNIVYY 1D DN
908 19,571 (18,663) DMMITN MNYY DNINMITN VI (NOIP) 1T
278 180 98 n YN NYXNND DINIVND MNYY DININD NI
- (76,390) 76,390 n NMIVYN ND>NND DYYAND DI NI
1,186 1,041 145 N NIVN POY DNV MW DININD NI
- (57,680) 57,680 n YN NOY DN DN/ NN
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nYa) 2023 ¥92 31 DY OITHIND D2 DAV MNNT NIXNNY DINN’A

(TYUNN) HPMNN MY MHAN HY 09D MNNT 91N ~ 11 NI

Fairview
99057 ANNN YY MT

2023 \9a 31 01y

IFRS MNINNN US GAAP

49997 99N 49991 99N 9991 %9983
880,657 47,403 833,254 T,N wap vidn
- (27,406) 27,406 T D»YMN MND1 D0
85,949 - 85,949 DINN DY0D)
966,606 19,997 946,609 D03 NP
9,620 (6,668) 16,288 N MINTI NMINXIN OXNROT M
453,497 630 452,867 MANN NMINNN
463,117 (6,038) 469,155 MNANNNN 27N
503,489 26,035 477 454 N DMV PN
966,606 19,997 946,609 PO MNINNHNN 2700

2022 X994 31 o9y

IFRS NINNN US GAAP

9917 *ahNa 9917 *ahNa 4917 2abNa
898,173 40,107 858,066 T ,N WP vIdn
- (28,276) 28,276 T D»YNIN YNYI DOV
159,899 - 159,899 DINN DY0I)
1,058,072 11,831 1,046,241 DY NP
26,567 (6,575) 33,142 N MINTI NINXIN OXNROY M
626,751 910 625,841 MANN NMINNN
653,318 (5,665) 658,983 MNANNHNN 2700
404,754 17,496 387,258 N DMV NN
1,058,072 11,831 1,046,241 17 MNAMNNN 27NV

2022 92084743 31 oY

IFRS NNINNN US GAAP

9997 99N 9997 99N 9991 %9983
885,349 45,684 839,665 T,N wmap vidn
- (27,624) 27,624 T D»WYNIN YNYI DOV
152,461 - 152,461 DMNN OX0D)
1,037,810 18,060 1,019,750 0’02 97Nv
32,446 (6,354) 38,800 N TINTI NMINXIN OXNROT M
534,330 700 533,630 MINN NMIANNN
566,776 (5,654) 572,430 MNANNNN 2700
471,034 23,714 447,320 N DX9MY PN
1,037,810 18,060 1,019,750 17 MNAMNNN 27/NY
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nba) 2023 ¥992 31 DY DITNIND DI DAV MNNT NINNNY DINN’A

(TYUNN) HPMNN MY MHAN DY DIV MNT §HY - 11 N

2023 ¥4 31 0’2 NNPNVAY DIUNN DYDY DY Napny

Fairview
$INN D9 AN TOSM NN DY NIN'T

oxnna IFRS MNINNN
MY MY
NMIAVYNN NMIAVYND NIRNN
nNaApn Yy *nWapn Hv IFRS-5 US GAAP
9997 *abNa 9917 *abNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa
97,148 8,053 - 89,095 mon
54,027 8,053 (2,251) 48,225 NVYIVON MK
43,121 - 2,251 40,870 MNYan NN
6,011 - (1,379) 7,390 DM MXNN
37,110 - 3,630 33,480 n9YPNY NN
(4,655) - (1,309) (3,346) 257 NAYNNY MXPOY - INN 901D NN
32,455 - 2,321 30,134 n2YPNY Y15 AN
2022 X912 31 §Y°2 NHPPNVNIY DIYNN DIV SV NoYpny
oxnna IFRS MNNRNN
Ny ndMmb
NMIAVNN ONMIVND NINNN
nYAPn YY *Wapn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9914 *abNa 9994 *abNa 9994 rahNa 9991 va9Na
97,572 (12,268) - 109,840 mMoIdN
58,028 (12,268) (2,243) 72,539 NPOWON NINNIN
39,544 - 2,243 37,301 MNYan NN
5,874 - (1,488) 7,362 DD MNNN
33,670 - 3,731 29,939 nYPNY AN
14,686 - (1,418) 16,104 259 NAYNNY MNXPOY - INN H910 NN
48,356 - 2,313 46,043 nPNY K915 N4
2022 93873 31 012 NNNPNVNY NIYY
oxnna IFRS MNNNN
NNy NNy
ONMIAVYND ONMIVND MNINRNN
nYAPn YY *Wapn Yy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9997 %9983 9997 %9983 49997 99N 9991 %9983
373,967 (76,939) - 450,906 moon
260,356 (76,939) (8,251) 345,546 NPLWAN MINIIN
113,611 - 8,251 105,360 VAN NNA
14,705 - (6,360) 21,065 NN MNNIN
98,906 - 14,611 84,295 MIVY NN
15,730 - (6,080) 21,810 259 NAYNNY MXPOY - INN 9910 NI
114,636 - 8,531 106,105 MYY 595 1090

YN ONNIN DY NN MRPOY DV NMINND DNMNNA NXAPN DY NIRNAYN NPPTNHD MNNNN I8 (*)
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nYa) 2023 ¥92 31 DY OITHIND D2 DAV MNNT NIXNNY DINN’A

(TYUNN) HPMNN MY MHAN DY DIV MNT §HPY - 11 N

2023 ¥4 31 0’2 NNPNVIY DIUNN NYITY DY Napny

Fairview
: DMIITHN DN DY NYTO NMIMNND MNNNN

IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
49994 99N 4999 99N 9991 %9983
37,110 3,630 33480 2a,N 19PN NN
57,137 - 57,137 NOVIV MY YAV IV DINNINH
8,969 9,129 (160) N NYPYN (MDOYSY WNIVY) MDIYIN WAV IV DOINNIN
(66,732) - (66,732) PO MDOYAT WNIYY 1D DN
(626) 9,129 (9,755) DMNITN ONYI DNMITN IV (POIP) 91T
1,459 1,370 89 n N9PNN NYINND DANINIVI MY DININD NI
- (38,404) 38,404 n N9YPNN NYNND DOYIANN OIMIID NI
833 776 57 n NOPNN NIDY DM MY DM NN
- (28,681) 28,681 n NOPNN PNOY DDANN DN NI
2022 ¥4 31 D2 NNONVIY DIUNN IVITY YV Napny
IFRS MNNNN US GAAP
9917 'aYNa 9917 'aYNa 9997 *abNa
33,670 3,731 29,939 2 ,N NMPNY NN
54,557 - 54,557 NAVIV MY IYAIY IV DINNIN
29,600 29,704 (104) N NYPYN (MDY WNIWY) MmOyan 1yaiw 10 DINNINH
(84,524) - (84,524) 11270 MDOYAY WYY 10) DINNND
(367) 29,704 (30,071) DNITND ONYI DNDITN VI (PVIP) 91T
4,408 4,330 78 n NMPNN NYINND OIMITD N DINMIH NN
- (72,663) 72,663 n NPNN NINND OXDINN DN/ NN
4,041 3,965 76 n N9PNN IDY DM MY DI NN
- (42,594) 42,594 n NPNN IO DYANN DNININD NI
2022 93874 31 D12 NNPNDAVY MY
IFRS NNINNN US GAAP
9911 2abNa 9911 r2abNa 9911 vabNa
98,906 14,611 84,295 2 ,N Yo P
140,040 - 140,040 NAVIV MDY IYAIY IV DININH
23,976 31,299 (7,323) N NYPYN (MDY WNIWY) MmOyan 1yaIv 10 DINNINH
(166,965) - (166,965) NI MDOYAT WNIVYY 1D DN
(2,949) 31,299 (34,248) DMNITN ONYI DTN VI (POIP) 91T
4,408 4,330 78 n YN NYXNND DINIVND MNYY DININD NI
- (72,663) 72,663 n MYN N2PNNY DYDANND DININD NI
1,459 1,370 89 N NIVN POY DNV MW DININD NI
- (38,404) 38,404 n YN NOY DN DN/ NN
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nYa) 2023 ¥92 31 DY OITHIND D2 DAV MNNT NIXNNY DINN’A

(TYUNN) HPMNN MY MHAN HY 09D MNNT 91N ~ 11 NI

Towantic
99057 ANNN YY MT

2023 \9a 31 01y

IFRS MNINRNN US GAAP

49997 99N 49991 99N 9991 %9983
839,655 80,991 758,664 T ,N Vap vidg
- (53,965) 53,965 T D»YMN MND1 D0
127,053 - 127,053 DINN DY0D)
966,708 27,026 939,682 D03 NP
13,762 (2,109) 15,871 N MINTI NMINXIN OXNROT M
514,155 (158) 514,313 MANN NMINNN
527,917 (2,267) 530,184 MHNIANNHNN 27N
438,791 29,293 409,498 N DMV PN
966,708 27,026 939,682 19 MNAMNNN 27N

2022 ¥4 31 o9

IFRS MNINNN US GAAP

4917 %9983 9917 *ahNa 4917 2abNa
866,046 82,397 783,649 T,N Wap vion
- (57,474) 57,474 T D»YNIN YNYI DOV
138,907 - 138,907 DINN DY0I)
1,004,953 24,923 980,030 DY NP
23,998 (1,923) 25,921 N THNTI MNNN OINIT MIN?
625,848 (228) 626,076 MANN NMINNN
649,846 (2,151) 651,997 MNANNHNN 2700
355,107 27,074 328,033 N DMV NN
1,004,953 24,923 980,030 17 MNAMNNN 27NV

2022 92084743 31 oY

IFRS NNINNN US GAAP

9997 99N 9997 99N 9991 %9983
846,409 81,413 764,996 T,N VAP vida
- (54,842) 54,842 T D»WYNIN YNYI DOV
176,558 - 176,558 DMNN OX0D)
1,022,967 26,571 996,396 0’9 579
19,168 (1,857) 21,025 N TINTI NMINXIN OXNROT M
605,189 (175) 605,364 MINN NMIANNN
624,357 (2,032) 626,389 MNANNNN 2700
398,610 28,603 370,007 N DX9MY PN
1,022,967 26,571 996,396 17 MNAMNNN 27/NY
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N7V INVNID.9.IN

(0299131 'nba) 2023 ¥992 31 DY DITNIND DI DAV MNNT NINNNY DINN’A

(TYUNN) HPMNN MY MHAN DY DIV MNT §HY - 11 N

2023 ¥4 31 0’2 NNPNVAY DIUNN DYDY DY Napny

Towantic
$INN D9 AN TOSM NN DY NIN'T

oxnna IFRS MNINRNN
N1NIY n1NIY
MHRMAYNDN HHNMIAYNDN MNIRNN
nNHapn HY NP HY IFRS-Y US GAAP
9917 'aYNa 9997 'aYNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *abNa
112,390 (1,496) - 113,886 moION
52,945 (1,496) (2,109) 56,550 NPOIWON MINNIN
8,611 - 1,402 7,209 MNNSM NN
50,834 - 707 50,127 YYan NNA
5,280 - (1,390) 6,670 DD NINSIN
45,554 - 2,097 43,457 nPNY NN
(5,373) - (1,407) (3,966) 25 NAYNNY MXPOY - INN 591D NN
40,181 - 690 39,491 9PN 5915 NN

2022 93 31 ©1°2 NNPNVAY DIVYNN DYDY SV NapnY

oxnna IFRS MNINND
999119 nMY
PRMAYND MHRNAYNN MIRNN
naAPn YV *nYapn vy IFRS-Y US GAAP
9917 'aYNa 9917 'aYNa 9997 *abNa 9997 *adbNa
154,713 8,721 - 145,992 moIdN
129,142 8,721 (1,923) 122,344 NYOIWON NINNIN
7,839 - 647 7,192 MNN9M NN
17,732 - 1,276 16,456 YN NN
5,290 - (1,679) 6,969 DM MINRNN
12,442 - 2,955 9,487 NMPNY AMNA
14,107 - (1,696) 15,803 2> NAYNNY MNPOY - INN 910 NN
26,549 - 1,259 25,290 NMPNY 9915 NNA
2022 9298473 31 092 NNINDNY MIYY
oxnna IFRS MNINRNN
NIy NIy
MHNMIAYNN MNMIAYND PNINRNN
NP HY *NWHaApn by IFRS-Y US GAAP
9997 99N 9997 99N 49997 99N 9991 %9983
494,665 49,637 - 445,028 mMoIdN
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KPMG'

KPMG LLP
1601 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2499

Independent Auditors’ Review Report

The Members of CPV Valley Holdings, LLC:

Results of Review of Consolidated Interim Financial Information

We have reviewed the consolidated financial statements of CPV Valley Holdings, LLC and its subsidiary (the
Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, changes in members’ equity, and cash
flows for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes (collectively referred
to as theconsolidated interim financial information).

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying condensed consolidated interim financial information for it to be in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Review Results

We conducted our reviews in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) applicable to reviews of interim financial information. A review of condensed consolidated
interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. A review of condensed consolidated interim financial
information is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, the objective of
which is an expression of an opinion regarding the financial information as a whole, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our reviews. We believe that the
results of the review procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Substantial Doubt About the Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated interim financial information has been prepared assuming that the Company
will continue as a going concern. Note 2 of the Company's audited consolidated financial statements as of
December 31, 2022, and for the year then ended, includes a statement that substantial doubt exists about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Note 2 of the Company's audited consolidated financial
statements also discloses the events and conditions, management's evaluation of the events and conditions,
and management's plans regarding these matters, including the fact that the Company has a balloon principal
payment due on June 30,2023, under its current credit agreement and the Company does not have committed
funding sources to fulfill this obligation when it comes due as of March 31, 2023. Our auditors' report on those
consolidated financial statements includes a separate section referring to the matters in Note 2 of those
consolidated financial statements. As indicated in Note 2 of the accompanying consolidated interim financial
information as of March 31, 2023, and for the three and months then ended, the Company does not have
committed funding sources to fulfill this obligation when it comes due as of March 31, 2023, and has stated that
substantial doubt exists about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The accompanying
consolidated interim financial information does not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome
of this uncertainty.

KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and a member firm of
the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.



KPMG

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Interim Financial Information

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated interim financial
information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated interim financial information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Report on Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2022

We have previously audited, in accordance with GAAS, the consolidated balance sheet as of

December 31, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income,
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein); and we expressed
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated

March 16, 2022. In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of
December 31, 2022 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

KPMe P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
May 18, 2023



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

(In thousands)

At March 31, At December 31,
Assets 2023 2022 2022
Current assets:
Cash $ 92 98 145
Restricted cash 15,741 6,097 4,630
Accounts receivable 7,136 13,333 36,570
Prepaid expenses 3,079 1,016 686
Deposits 1 6,116 1
Fuel inventory 1,054 1,337 2,013
Emissions inventory 7,582 803 3,473
Derivative assets, interest rate swaps 1,101 — 2,132
Derivative assets, energy — 4,476 8,892
Other current assets 1,846 — 649
Total current assets 37,632 33,276 59,191
Property, plant, and equipment, net 781,001 804,997 786,365
Long-term deposits 515 842 466
Restricted cash 33,030 86,038 53,050
Spare parts inventory 4,570 3,479 4,256
Derivative assets, interest rate swaps — 79 —
Derivative assets, energy — 895 —
Intangible assets 20,437 14,526 20,604
Total assets $ 877,185 944,132 923,932
Liabilities and Members’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 12,638 19,902 31,775
Current portion of long-term debt 457,423 32,663 500,386
Derivative liabilities, interest rate swaps — 2,346 —
Derivative liabilities, energy — — 10,675
Other current liabilities 297 — 748
Total current liabilities 470,358 54,911 543,584
Long-term debt — 531,885 —
Promissory note payable - related party 2,900 2,900 2,900
Other long-term liabilities - related party 3,550 3,550 3,550
Other long-term liabilities — 2,145 —
Total liabilities 476,808 595,391 550,034
Commitments and contingencies (notes 7 and 8)
Members’ equity 400,377 348,741 373,898
Total liabilities and members’ equity $ 877,185 944,132 923,932

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)
(In thousands)

For the three-month periods
ended March 31,

2023 2022
Operating revenue $ 53,275 124,496
Unrealized gain (loss) on energy derivatives 24,643 (8,735)
Total operating revenue 77,918 115,761
Fuel and other 23,409 60,079
Operating expenses 12,713 13,252
Depreciation and amortization 6,515 6,435
Taxes other than income taxes 426 424
Total operating expenses 43,063 80,190
Operating income 34,855 35,571
Interest expense, net (9,127) (7,835)
Net income 25,728 27,736
Other comprehensive income:
Comprehensive income — derivative instruments 751 5,107
Comprehensive income $ 26,479 32,843

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members’ Equity (Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Accumulated

other Total
Members’ Accumulated comprehensive members’

equity deficit (loss) income equity
Balance, December 31, 2021 $ 465,593 (142,321) (7,374) 315,898
Net income — 50,276 — 50,276
Comprehensive income — derivative instruments — — 7.724 7.724
Total comprehensive income — 50,276 7.724 58,000
Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 465,593 (92,045) 350 373,808
Net income — 25728 — 25728
Comprehensive income-— derivative instruments — — 791 791
Total comprehensive income — 25728 751 26,479
Balance, March 31, 2023 $ 465,593 (66,317) 1,101 400,377

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of debt related costs
Change in fair value, energy derivative
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Fuel inventory

Emissions inventory
Spare parts inventory

Prepaid expenses
Deposits

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:

Property, plant, and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities:
Proceeds from long term rewvolver debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Repayment of long term revolver debt
Repayment from working capital facility
Deferred financing costs

(In thousands)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and restricted cash at beginning of the year
Cash and restricted cash at end of the year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest and financing fees

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Liabilities incurred for property, plant, and equipment

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

For the three-month periods
ended March 31,

2023 2022
$ 25,728 27,736
6,515 6,435
226 197
— 8,734
29,434 (1,615)
959 (312)
(4,109) (803)
(314) (252)
(2,393) (571)
(49) 4,221
(20,013) (20,590)
35,984 23,180
(226) (55)
— (4,287)
(226) (4,342)
15,000 17,630
(8,640) (7,560)
(50,000) (4,263)
— (8,900)
(1,080) —
(44,720) (3,093)
(8,962) 15,745
57,825 76,488
$ 48,863 92,233
$ 7,459 7,459
$ 757 _



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

(1) Organization

CPV Valley Holdings, LLC (Valley or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company, was formed on
July 23, 2013. Valley is the parent company of its wholly owned subsidiary, CPV Valley, LLC, which was
formed on June 13, 2007. The purpose of Valley, through its subsidiary, is to construct, finance, own, and
operate a 720-megawatt (MW) gas-fired, combined-cycle power project located in Wawayanda, New York
(the Facility or Project). The Facility commenced operations and was placed in service on October 1, 2018
(COD).

As of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, Valley’s equity interests were held by two
members: CPV Power Holdings, LP (CPV PHLP) (50%) and a third-party (Third Party) (50%), collectively
the equity members (Equity Members).

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated interim financial statements include the accounts of Valley and CPV Valley, LLC. All
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. The Company’s interim consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (U.S. GAAP) and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s last annual consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2022 (the "2022 Annual Financial Statements"). The condensed
consolidated interim financial statements do not include all of the information required for a complete set
of financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. However, selected explanatory notes
are included to explain events and transactions that are significant to an understanding of the changes in
the Company’s financial position and performance since the 2022 Annual Financial Statements. The
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC), established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB), is the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP applied by nongovernmental entities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s interim consolidated financial statements requires the use of
estimates and assumptions based on management’s knowledge and experience. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates
that were used.

Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation Expense

The Company’s property, plant, and equipment is recorded based on historical cost and primarily
comprise generation assets and the cost of acquired land. Depreciation, after consideration of salvage
value and asset retirement obligations, is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, commencing when assets, or major components thereof, are either placed in
service or acquired (note 3). Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.
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(e)
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance with ASC 360,
Property, Plant, and Equipment (ASC 360). Factors that could indicate impairment include significant
underperformance relative to historical and projected future operating results, significant changes in the
manner or use of acquired assets, or the strategy of the Company’s overall business, including
significant negative industry and economic trends. If an indicator of impairment is identified, the
carrying amount of the Company’s long-lived assets would be considered impaired when their
anticipated undiscounted cash flows are less than their carrying value. Impairment is measured as the
difference between the discounted expected future cash flows and the assets’ carrying amount.

The Company has not recognized impairment losses on its long-lived assets for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

Risks and Uncertainties

As with any power generation facility, operation of the Facility involves risk, including the performance
of the Facility below expected levels of efficiency and output, shutdowns due to the breakdown or
failure of equipment or processes, violations of permit requirements, operator error, labor disputes, or
catastrophic events such as fires, earthquakes, floods, explosions, pandemics, including COVID-19, or
other similar occurrences affecting a power generation facility or its power purchasers. In addition, the
Facility operates as a merchant plant and is impacted by changes in natural gas and regional power
market conditions, as well as changes in the rules and regulations governing these markets. The
Company has taken steps to mitigate the potential risks posed by COVID-19 and the impacts to date
have been minimal; however, since this is an evolving situation, the Company cannot predict the extent
or impact of this pandemic on its business. The occurrence of any of these events could significantly
reduce or eliminate revenue generated by the Company or significantly increase the expenses of the
Company, and adversely impact the Company’s ability to make payments on its debt when due.

Income Taxes

The Company is organized as a limited liability company and is classified and treated as a partnership
for federal and state income tax purposes. No provision for the payment of federal and state income
taxes has been provided since the Company is not subject to income tax. Each member is responsible
for reporting income or loss based on such members’ respective share of the Company’s income and
expenses as reported for income tax purposes. As such, no income tax expense or benefit has been
recorded within these interim consolidated financial statements for the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2023 and 2022.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash, deposits, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable and accrued expenses, equals or approximates their fair value due
to the short-term maturity of those instruments. Cash accounts are generally maintained in federally
insured banks but may at times have balances in accounts in excess of federally insured limits. The fair
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

value of the long-term debt approximates its book value at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and
March 31, 2022, as the interest rates are variable (note 5).

Cash

Cash comprises highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash and cash equivalents that comprise highly liquid investments. Such
amounts are restricted under the terms of the Company’s Credit Agreement (note 5). Restricted cash
accounts include, but are not limited to, an operating account, revenue account and letter of credit
revolver account. All such accounts are held, and maintained, by an agent. The Company’s
classification of restricted cash is based on the classification of its intended use. At March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, the Company had $15.7 million, $4.6 million, and $6.1
million, respectively, pertaining to operating activities classified as current assets. The Company also
had $33.0 million, $53.0 million and $86.0 million of restricted cash classified as noncurrent, which
pertains to cash collateral — letters of credit on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets
at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively. Restricted cash and
long-term restricted cash totaled $48.8 million, $57.7 million, and $92.1 million at March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022 respectively.

Prepaid Expenses

Current prepaid expenses consist of insurance premiums, bank fees, and other miscellaneous fees
totaling $3.1 million, $0.7 million, and $1.0 million at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March
31, 2022, respectively, on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

Fuel Inventory

Fuel inventory primarily consists of fuel oil used to generate power. Fuel oil is carried at the lower of
cost or net realizable value. The cost of fuel oil is comprised of its purchase price and incidental
expenditures to deliver it to the Facility. The cost is reduced to net realizable value if the net realizable
value of inventory has declined and it is probable that the utility of inventory, in its disposal in the
ordinary course of business, will not be recovered through revenue earned from the generation of
power. A lower of cost or net realizable value provision of $0.0 million and $0.2 million for the three-
month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, is included in Fuel and other on the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. The
Company had Fuel inventory of $1.1 million, $2.0 million, and $1.3 million for the periods ended March
31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022 respectively, on the accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets.

Emissions Inventory

The Company is subject to environmental regulations, which require it to purchase certain emissions
allowances. These allowances are either Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative allowances purchased
through quarterly auctions or through bilateral trades. These allowances are held for use by the
Company and are stated at the lower of weighted-average cost or market. As of March 31, 2023,

9



CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, the Company’s emission inventory totaled $7.6 million, $3.5
million, and $0.8 million, respectively, and is classified as Emissions inventory on accompanying
interim consolidated balance sheets.

(m) Spare Parts Inventory

(n)

(o)

(P)

Spare parts inventory primarily consists of spare parts and supplies used to maintain the power
generation facility. Spare parts inventory is carried at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is the
sum of the purchase price and incidental expenditures and charges incurred to bring the inventory to its
existing condition or location. Costs of spare parts are valued primarily using the average cost method.
Generally, cost is reduced to net realizable value if the net realizable value of inventory has declined
and it is probable that the utility of inventory, in its disposal in the ordinary course of business, will not
be recovered through revenue earned from the generation of power. The Company’s Spare parts
inventory balance was $4.6 million, $4.3 million, and $3.5 million at March 31, 2023, December 31,
2022, and March 31, 2022 respectively, on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and
Other (ASC 350). ASC 350 requires that intangible assets determined to have indefinite lives no longer
be amortized but instead be tested for impairment at least annually and whenever events or
circumstances occur that indicate impairment might have occurred. ASC 350 also requires that
intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives
and reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of an asset may not be recoverable. Separable intangible assets that are deemed to have finite
lives will continue to be amortized using the straight-line method over their estimable useful lives.

Deposits

During 2021, the Company made deposits totaling $10.4 million related to system upgrade
interconnections. During 2022, the full $10.4 million was utilized for those upgrades and is, classified as
Intangible assets on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets. Long-term deposits
totaled $0.5 million, $0.5 million, and $0.8 million at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March
31, 2022, respectively.

The Company’s deposits expected to be returned within twelve months are classified as Deposits,
current totaled $0.0 million, $0.0 million, and $6.1 million at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and
March 31, 2022, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

The Company capitalized costs associated with obtaining its third-party financing. Direct costs incurred
with obtaining debt are amortized under the interest method over the term of the related debt.
Amortization of these costs totaled $0.7 million for both three-month periods ended March 31, 2023
and 2022, which is included in Interest expense, net on the accompanying interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

10
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Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

The Current portion of long-term debt is shown net of $0.7 million, $1.4 million, and $2.7 million of
unamortized deferred financing costs for the periods ended at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022,
and March 31, 2022, respectively. Long-term debt is presented net of $0.0 million, $0.0 million, and
$0.7 million of deferred financing costs at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022,
respectively.

Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to market risks from changing
interest rates. The Company may also enter into Revenue Put Options (RPOs), forward purchases and
sales of commodities, and other derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to market fluctuations of
energy and natural gas prices. The Company recognizes all contracts that meet the definition of a
derivative as either assets or liabilities in the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets and
measures those derivatives at fair value under the accounting standards for derivatives and hedging.
On the date a derivative is entered into, the Company may designate hedging relationships if certain
criteria in ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815), are met; otherwise, the derivative is marked
to market in the Company’s interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income
(loss). The Company documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy. This process includes linking all derivatives that are
designated as hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the accompanying interim consolidated balance
sheets or to forecasted transactions. The Company also assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and
on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items.

When it is determined that a derivative has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the Company
discontinues hedge accounting prospectively. This could occur when: (1) it is determined that a
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of a hedged item; (2) the
derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; or (3) the derivative is discontinued as a hedging
instrument, because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur. When hedge accounting is
discontinued because it is determined that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge of
cash flows, the derivative will continue to be carried at fair value on the accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets, and the gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive
income or loss (OCI) are recognized immediately or over the remaining term of the forecasted
transaction in the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss).

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are either recognized in the accompanying interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) or the accompanying interim
consolidated statements of changes in members’ equity as a component of accumulated OCI,
depending upon their use and designation. Gains and losses related to transactions that qualify for
hedge accounting are recorded in accumulated OCI and flow through the accompanying interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) in the periods the hedged
item affects earnings. Otherwise, any gains and losses resulting from changes in the market value of
the contracts are recorded in the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) in the current period.
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CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of
accounts receivable, which are concentrated within the energy industry and derivative financial
instruments with large creditworthy financial institutions. These industry concentrations may impact the
Company’s overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that the customers may be
similarly affected by changes in economic, industry or other conditions. Receivables and other
contractual arrangements are subject to collateral requirements under the terms of enabling
agreements. However, the Company believes that the credit risk posed by industry concentration is
offset by the diversification and creditworthiness of the Company’s customer base and its contractual
collateral requirements.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to claims and proceedings arising in the normal course of business. The
Company records a loss contingency in accordance with ASC 450, Contingencies (ASC 450), when it
is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Management assesses each matter and determines the likelihood a loss has been incurred and the
amount of such loss if it can be reasonably estimated. Management reviews such matters on an
ongoing basis. Contingencies are evaluated based on estimates and judgments made by management
with respect to the likely outcome of such matters. Management’s estimates could change based on
new information.

The Company follows the guidance of ASC 460, Guarantees (ASC 460), for disclosing and accounting
for guarantees and indemnifications entered into during the course of business. When a guarantee or
indemnification subject to ASC 460 is entered into, the estimated fair value of the guarantee or
indemnification is assessed. Some guarantees and indemnifications could have a financial impact
under certain circumstances. Management considers the probability of such circumstances occurring
when estimating fair value.

Membership Interests

Profits, losses, and distributions of net cash flows shall be allocated in proportion to each member’s
respective ownership interest, as outlined in the Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company
Agreement (ARLLCA), dated as of June 12, 2015, as amended. As a limited liability company, the
liability of each member is limited to (i) any unpaid capital contributions, (ii) the amount of any
distributions required to be returned in accordance with the agreement, and (iii) any amount the
member is required to pay pursuant to the ARLLCA.

The members did not make any capital contributions to the Company during both three-month periods
ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

The Company did not make any distributions during both three-month periods ended March 31, 2023
and 2022.

12
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Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

Contemporaneous with the execution of the Credit Agreement (CA), all members of the Company
executed an agreement, which pledged their respective equity interests in the Company to the
creditors.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

The Company accounts for its revenue in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (ASC 606). Revenue is earned from our generation facilities providing capacity and
ancillary services to our customer, the independent system operator (ISO), and from the production
and sale of electricity from our generation facilities. Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of control
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which we
expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Our contracts to provide capacity each
have one performance obligation and are result from bilateral contracts with third parties signed and
auctions held by the ISO to procure capacity in advance of when the capacity is expected to be needed
and thus to be provided. Our contracts to provide electricity and ancillary services have their own
performance obligations.

The performance obligations are satisfied over time and use the same method to measure progress, so
they meet the criteria to be considered a series. In measuring progress towards satisfaction of each
performance obligation, the Company applies the “right-to-invoice” practical expedient and recognizes
revenue in the amount to which the Company has a right to consideration from a customer that
corresponds directly with the value of the performance completed to date. Performance obligations
including energy or ancillary services (such as operations and maintenance and dispatch services) are
generally measured by the MWh delivered. Capacity, which is a stand-ready obligation to deliver
energy when required by the customer, is measured using MWs. Capacity revenues were $6.4 million
and $5.7 million, for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which are
reflected as a component of Operating revenue in the accompanying statements of operations and
comprehensive income.

Accounts receivable are stated at the actual billed amount net of an allowance for bad debts, if needed.
There was no such allowance as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, or March 31 2022. The
Company assesses the collectability of accounts receivable based on factors such as specific
evaluation, age of the receivable, and other available information.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Adopted)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new standard
establishes a right-of-use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease
liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases will be
classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense
recognition in the income statement. In November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10, Effective
dates (ASU 2019-10) which adjusted the effective date of this guidance to January 1, 2021. In June
2020, the FASB issued ASU No 2020-05, which further adjusted the effective date of this guidance
to January 1, 2022. The Company adopted the standard effective January 1, 2022 utilizing the
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Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

required modified retrospective approach which allows the requirements of the standard in the
period of adoption with no restatement of prior periods. The Company applied the new guidance
with the “package of three” transition practical expedients permitted, including the expedient: which
must be taken together and allow entities to (1) not reassess whether existing contracts contain
leases (2) carryforward the existing lease classification, and (3) not reassess initial direct costs
associated with existing leases. There was no material impact to the financial position or results of
operations of the Company.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments (Topic 326) that provides for a new Current Expected Credit Loss (CECL) impairment
model for specified financial instruments including loans, trade receivables, debt securities
classified as held-to-maturity investments and net investments in leases recognized by a lessor.
Under the new guidance, on initial recognition and at each reporting period, an entity is required to
recognize an allowance that reflects the entity’s current estimate of credit losses expected to be
incurred over the life of the financial instrument. The standard does not make changes to the
existing impairment models for non-financial assets such as fixed assets, intangibles and goodwiill.
In November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10, which adjusts effective date of this standard to
January 1, 2023. The Company adopted the standard effective January 1, 2023. There was no
material impact to the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

(2) Going Concern

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic
205-40, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (ASC 205-40) requires management to
evaluate whether conditions and/or events raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to meet its
future financial obligations as they become due within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued.

The Company’s operating cash flow is its primary source of liquidity to meet its debt service obligations.
While the Company has generated sufficient operating cash flows to fund its debt service obligations
through March 31,2023, it is not expected to have sufficient liquidity to repay its obligations under its credit
agreement (CA) at the time the associated $405.0 million balloon principal payment is due on June 30,
2023. This condition raises substantial doubt. Consequently, management is actively engaged in
discussions with its lenders and has reached agreement in principal on terms to extend the Company’s CA
through May 31, 2026, subject to formal approvals and definitive documentation. The terms and conditions
of the extension include, among other considerations, the Equity Members have agreed to contribute $55
million of equity into the Company to pay down the term loan and increase the weighted average credit
spreads from 3.75% to approximately 5.75% on the debt. While management believes it is likely the
Company will sign definitive documents to extend the CA, the formal approvals for the extension are
outside of management’s control and thus these uncertainties do not alleviate substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will
continue to operate as a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and settlement of
liabilities in the normal course of business, and does not include any adjustments to reflect the possible
future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classifications of
liabilities that may result from uncertainty related to its ability to continue as a going concern.

Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net
Property, plant, and equipment, net consisted of the following:

Estimated March 31, December 31, March 31,
useful life 2023 2022 2022
(In years) (In thousands)
Land N/A $ 6,009 6,009 6,009
Generation facility 35 887,903 887,833 887,500
Office furniture and fixtures 10 20 20 154
Tools and plant equipment 10 237 237 35
Computer hardware and software 3 636 655 655
Vehicles 5 69 69 69
Total 894,874 894,823 894,422
Construction in progress 968 54 54
Accumulated depreciation (114,841) (108,512) (89,479)
Property, plant, and
equipment, net $ 781,001 786,365 804,997

Depreciation totaled $6.3 million for both the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023, and 2022, which
is classified as Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim statements of operations and

comprehensive income. The cost to acquire land and secure easements are both classified as land and is
included in Property, plant, and equipment, net on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

15



(4)

()

CPV VALLEY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

Intangible Assets

The Company recognized separately identifiable intangible assets related to the electrical interconnection,
a water supply and sewer agreement required to operate the Facility and the purchase of emission offsets
to comply with the Project’s air permit. The Company paid for the cost of the electrical interconnection and
water supply upgrades but did not retain title to the assets. On COD, the Company commenced the
amortization of its intangible assets using the straight-line method over their respective estimated useful
lives of 35 years. Intangible assets are as follows:

Estimated March 31, December 31, March 31,
useful life 2023 2022 2022
(In years) (In thousands)
Emissions offset 35 $ 429 429 429
Water interconnection 35 241 241 241
Electrical interconnection 35 21,305 21,305 14,817
Total 21,975 21,975 15,487
Accumulated amortization (1,538) (1,371) (961)
Intangible assets, net $ 20,437 20,604 14,526

Amortization of intangible assets totaled $168 thousand and $93 thousand during the three-month periods
ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is classified as Depreciation and amortization on the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. Amortization

expense related to the years 2023 through 2027 is expected to be approximately $670 thousand, annually.

Debt Facilities

The Company is a borrower under a $679.5 million credit agreement (CA) with a consortium of lenders.
The CA provided the Company a Construction/Term Loan facility (Term Loan Facility) of $540.0 million, a
Working Capital facility (WC Facility) of $15.0 million, a Revolving Letter of Credit Loan facility (RLC Loan
Facility) of $124.5 million, and a Letter of Credit Facility (LC Facility) consisting of six individual sublimit
letters of credit, to be used for specified purposes over the term of the CA.

On April 6, 2021, the Company entered into the Seventh Amendment of its Credit Agreement
(Amendment). In part, the Amendment provided the Company access to the remaining $5.0 million
borrowing capacity under its WC Facility, which had been withheld pending resolution of certain permitting
matters. In circumstances when the WC Facility is fully utilized, the Amendment permits the Company to
issue up to $10.0 million promissory notes (Promissory Notes) to its Equity Members ($5.0 million to each
Member) (note 8a). In return, the Company’s Equity Members were required to post $10.0 million of credit
collateral.

CPV PHLP elected to provide its collateral via a $5.0 deposit into a Company restricted cash account while
the Third-Party member issued a $5.0 million letter of credit in favor of the CA lenders.
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On November 10, 2022, the Company entered into the Eighth Amendment of its Credit Agreement
(Amendment). In part, the Amendment allowed the Company to increase the first Lien facility to $300.0
million for additional commodity hedges prior to March 31, 2023 and decreased to $125.0 million on or after
March 31, 2023.

The table below summarizes the Company’s outstanding debt, net of unamortized deferred financing costs
as of:

March 31, December 31, March 31,
Description 2023 2022 2022
(In thousands)
Term Loan Facility $ 415,260 423,900 450,630
RLC Loan Facility 42,839 77,839 117,302
Unamortized deferred financing costs (676) (1,353) (3,384)
Total $ 457,423 500,386 564,548

Borrowings for all facilities under the CA bear interest at the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus
an applicable margin. The applicable margin during the term of the CA is as follows:

From initial draw to one year after term loan

conwersion 3.25%
The two subsequent years 3.50
The final two years under the CA 3.75

Unused available credit under the CA incurs a commitment fee of 0.50% per annum. Interest expense and
commitment fees incurred during the operating period are expensed when incurred and classified as
Interest expense, net on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss). During the three - month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the
Company incurred $9.7 million and $5.7 million, respectively, of interest and fees, which are classified as
Interest expense, net on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income.

The outstanding Term Loan Facility balance was $415.3 million, $423.9 million and $450.6 million at an
annual rate of 8.5%, 7.4%, and 3.7% at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022,
respectively. The CA requires scheduled mandatory repayments and voluntary prepayments (sweeps) of
borrowings under the Term Loan Facility. The quarterly payments are scheduled for five years, with a
balloon payment due at the end of the term on June 30, 2023. Sweep payments, if made, reduce the
amount of the balloon payment.
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The Company borrowed $0.0 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022,
respectively, under the WC Facility.

Borrowings under the RLC Loan Facility totaled $42.8 million, $77.8 million, and $117.3 million as of March
31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively, which serve as collateral for the issued
letters of credit issued under the LC Facility. Issued letters of credit totaled $42.8 million, $77.8 million, and
$117.3 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively. The issued
letters of credit are required under the several of the Company’s contractual arrangements.

The scheduled increase in the applicable margin for the Term Loan Facility is recognized as a long-term
liability. The liability totaled $0.3 million, $0.7 million, and $2.1 million at March 31, 2023, December 31,
2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively, and is classified as Other long-term liabilities on the
accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets. Accretion income totaled $451 thousand and $480
thousand for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is included in
Interest expense, net on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income.

The CA required the Company to pledge all its assets as security in favor of the lenders.

(6) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
(a) Interest Rate Swaps

The Company enters into pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to
market risks from changing interest rates. Interest rate swap agreements are used to convert the
floating interest rate component of the Company’s long-term debt obligations to fixed rates. Such
interest rate swap agreements are designated as cash flow hedges under ASC 815. All effective
changes in fair market value are deferred in OCI and all ineffective changes are recognized in the
interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

As part of entering into the CA, the Company executed amortizing interest rate swaps with 7 financial
institutions which were designated to hedge 70% of the Company’s Term Loan Facility for the
operating period.

The fair value of interest rate swaps assets totaled $1.1 million, $2.1 million, and $0.1 million as of
March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively, on the accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets. The balance consists of a current portion of $1.1 million, $2.1 million, and
$0.0 million and a noncurrent portion of $0.0 million, $0.0 million, and $0.1 million as of March 31,
2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively, which are classified Derivative assets,
interest rate swaps on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

The fair value of interest rate swaps liability totaled $0.0 million, $0.0 million, and $2.3 million as of
March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively, which entirely consists of
current portion and are classified as Derivative liabilities, interest rate swaps on the accompanying
interim consolidated balance sheets.
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The details of these instruments as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, are
set forth in the following tables (in thousands):

March 31, 2023

Swap period Dates Swap details Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3 Swap 4 Swap 5 Swap 6 Swap 7
Operational sw aps:
Trade date June 12, 2015 Notional
amount $ 26,208 39,312 26,208 26,208 31,248 26,208 26,208
Effective date February 14,2018  Fixed rate 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 %
Termination date June 30, 2023 Floating rate USD-LBBOR-  USD-LIBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBBOR- USD-LBBOR- USD-LIBOR-
BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA
December 31, 2022
Swap period Dates Swap details Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3 Swap 4 Swap 5 Swap 6 Swap 7
Operational sw aps:
Trade date June 12, 2015 Notional
amount $ 29199 43,799 29,199 29,199 34,814 29,199 29,199
Effective date February 14,2018  Fixed rate 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 %
Termination date June 30, 2023 Floating rate USD-LBOR-  USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LIBOR-
BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA
March 31, 2022
Swap period Dates Swap details Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3 Swap 4 Swap 5 Swap 6 Swap 7
Operational sw aps:
Trade date June 12, 2015 Notional
amount $ 31,632 47,447 31,632 31,632 37,715 31,632 31,632
Effective date February 14,2018  Fixed rate 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 % 2.7735 %
Termination date June 30, 2023 Floating rate USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBOR- USD-LBBOR- USD-LIBOR-

BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA BBA

As of March 31, 2023, the Company estimates $1.1 million will be reclassified out of OCI over the next
12 months; however, actual results may differ due to changes in market conditions during the same
time period.

(b) Commodity Derivatives

The Company is counterparty to a RPO with a creditworthy counterparty. The RPO is designed to
provide the Company a floor, or minimum gross margin, over its term. The annual $65.0 million strike
price, which covers an exercise period or fiscal year, uses specific factors such as heat rate, expected
production levels, forward power and gas commodity prices, gas transportation costs, and other project
specific costs to calculate gross margin per the agreement.
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Summarized terms are presented below:

Transaction Annual Revenue Put Option

Trade date June 11, 2015

Total option premiums paid $ 75.5 million

Exercise periods June 1, 2018 through May 31, 2019

June 1, 2019 through May 31, 2020
June 1, 2020 through May 31, 2021
June 1, 2021 through May 31, 2022
June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023

The fair value of the RPO totaled $0.0 million, $0.0 million, and $5.4 million as of March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022 respectively. The balance consists of current portion of $0.0
million, $0.0 million, and $5.4 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2023
respectively, and are classified as Derivative assets, energy on the accompanying interim consolidated
balance sheets. The RPO incurred an unrealized loss of $0.0 million and $8.7 million for the three-
month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is included in Unrealized loss on
energy derivatives on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income.

(in thousands):

OCIl rollforward:

Ending balance as of December 31, 2021 $ —
Amount of loss recognized in OCI on derivatives (1,783)
Ending balance as of December 31, 2022 (1,783)
Amount of gain recognized in OCI on derivatives 1,783
Ending balance as of March 31, 2023 $ —

(c) Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company records the fair value of all derivatives as assets and liabilities. In determining fair value,
the Company generally uses the income approach and incorporates assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and/or the risks
inherent in the inputs to the valuation techniques. These inputs can be readily observable, market
corroborated, or are generally unobservable internally developed inputs. Derivative assets and
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liabilities are classified depending on how readily observable the inputs used in the valuation
techniques are, as follows:

Level 1 — Represents unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. This category includes energy derivative
instruments that are exchange traded or that are cleared and settled through the exchange.

Level 2 — Represents quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
market prices in markets that are not active, or other valuations based on inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data. This category includes the
Company’s interest rate swaps.

Level 3 — This category includes energy derivative instruments whose fair value is estimated based
on internally developed models and methodologies utilizing significant inputs that are generally less
readily observable from objective sources (such as market heat rates, implied volatilities, and
correlations). Over-the-counter, complex, or structured derivative instruments that are transacted in
less liquid markets with limited pricing information would be included in Level 3. This category
includes the Company’s RPO.

(d) Additional Information Regarding Level 3 Measurements

For valuations that include both observable and unobservable inputs, if the unobservable input is
determined to be significant to the overall inputs, the entire valuation is categorized in Level 3. This
includes derivatives valued using indicative price quotations for contracts with tenors that extend into
periods with no observable pricing. For the Company, this includes the RPO, which given the inputs
listed below, would have a direct impact on the fair value if they were adjusted. The significant
unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the RPO are as follows:

March 31, 2023

Significant
Valuation unobservable
Description Assets technique input Range Volatility
(In thousands)
Discounted cash Volatility related to
Revenue Put Option $ — flow the Put Option  $ — 75%
Total $ — $ — 125%
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December 31, 2022

Significant
Valuation unobservable
Description Assets technique input Range Volatility
(In thousands)
Discounted cash Volatility related to
Revenue Put Option $ — flow the Put Option  $ — 75%
Total $ — $ — 125%

March 31, 2022

Significant
Valuation unobservable
Description Assets technique input Range Volatility
(In thousands)
Discounted cash Volatility related to
Revenue Put Option $ 5,371 flow the Put Option  § 1,673 75%
Total $ 5,371 $ 10,455 125%

(e) Valuation Techniques

The fair value measurement accounting guidance describes three main approaches to measuring the
fair value of assets and liabilities: (1) market approach, (2) income approach, and (3) cost approach.
The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated from market transactions
involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques
to convert future amounts to a single present value amount. The measurement is based on current
market expectations of the return on those future amounts.

The Company measures its interest rate swap and energy derivatives at fair value on a recurring basis.
The fair value of its interest rate swap derivatives is determined using the income approach by a
third-party treasury and risk management service. The service utilizes a standard model and
observable inputs to estimate the fair value of the interest rate swaps. The Company performs
analytical procedures and makes comparisons to other third-party information to assess the
reasonableness of the fair value. The fair value of the RPO is determined using the income approach
based on internally developed models and methodologies utilizing significant inputs that are less
readily observable from objective sources. The Company maintains controls over the model and its
methodology and performs analytical procedures and makes comparisons to third-party information
when available to assess the reasonableness of the fair value.
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Fair value measurements of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, based on the above hierarchy, are as follows:

March 31, 2023
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)

Assets:
Interest rate swaps $ 1,101 — 1,101 —
Total $ 1,101 — 1,101 —
December 31, 2022
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)
Assets:
Interest rate swaps $ 2,132 — 2,132 —
Commodity swaps 8,892 — 8,892 —
Total $ 11,024 — 11,024 —
Liabilities:
Commodity swaps (10,675) — (10,675) —
Total $ (10,675) — (10,675) —
March 31, 2022
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)
Assets:
Interest rate swaps $ 79 — 79 —
Revenue Put Option 5,371 — — 5,371
Total $ 5,450 — 79 5,371
Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ (2,346) — (2,346) —
Total $ (2,346) — (2,346) —

For the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company did not have any transfers
between levels 1, 2, or 3.
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Fair value measurements using significant

March 31, 2023

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Balance — beginning of period
Unrealized loss in revenue

Ending balance

(i)

(In thousands)

(In thousands)

$ — 14,105
— (8,734)
$ — 5,371

Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets

The following tables present the balance sheet classification and fair value of derivative
instruments on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets as of:

Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815:
Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps
Interest rate swaps
Commodity swaps

Commodity swaps

Total derivatives designated
as hedging instruments
under ASC 815

Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815:
Revenue Put Option

Revenue Put Option

Total derivatives not
designated as hedging
instruments under
ASC 815, net

Total derivatives, net

Balance sheet location

March 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

March 31,
2022

Current - derivative assets,
interest rate swaps

Long term - derivative assets,
interest rate swaps

Current - derivative liabilities,
interest rate swaps

Current - derivative assets,

energy

Current - derivative liabilities,

energy

Current - derivative assets,

energy

Long term — derivative assets,

energy
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(Inthousands)

(In thousands)

(In thousands)

1,101 2,132 —
- — 79
- — (2,346)
- 8,892 —
— (10,675) —

1,101 349 (2,267)
- - 4,476
— — 895
— — 5371

1,101 349 3,104
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Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Interim Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income

The following tables present the classification of derivative instruments on the accompanying
interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, segregated between those designated as hedging
instruments and those that are not.

The impact of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments:

Three-month period ended March 31, 2023

Location of Amount
Amount loss gain Location of Amount of
of gain reclassified reclassified loss loss
recognized from from recognized recognized
in OCL on OCL into OCL into in income on in income on
derivative income income derivative derivative
(effective (effective (effective (ineffective (ineffective
Instruments portion) portion) portion) portion) portion)
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)
Interest rate swaps  $ 45  Interest expense, net $ 987 Interest expense, net $ —
Total §$ 45 $ 987 $ —
Three-month period ended March 31, 2022
Location of Amount
Amount loss loss Location of Amount of
of loss reclassified reclassified loss loss
recognized from from recognized recognized
inOCL on OCL into OCL into inincome on in income on
derivative income income derivative derivative
(effective (effective (effective (ineffective (ineffective
Instruments portion) portion) portion) portion) portion)
(Inthousands) (Inthousands) (Inthousands)
Interestrate swaps  $ (3,357) Interestexpense, net $ 1,750 Interestexpense,net $ —
Total  §___ (3357) S 1750 S —
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The impact of derivative instruments that have not been designated as hedging instruments as of:

Amount of
loss
recognized
in income
on derivative
Location of Three-month period ended
loss recognized March 31,
Instruments in income on derivative 2023
(In thousands)
Revenue put option Unrealized loss on energy derivatives ~ $ —
Operating revenue —
Total $ —
Amount of
loss
recognized
in income
on derivative
Location of Three-month period ended
loss recognized March 31,
Instruments in income on derivative 2022
(In thousands)
Revenue put option Unrealized loss on energy derivatives  $ (8,735)
Operating revenue —
Total $ (8,735)
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(7) Project Agreements, Commitments, and Contingencies

(a) Transmission and Interconnection

(i)

(i)

Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreement

The Company entered into a Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreement (LGIA) among
the NYISO and the New York Power Authority (NYPA), which established the Facility’s required
electrical interconnection, necessary system upgrades, and the associated transmission service
upon the commencement of operations. The LGIA outlines the transmission services NYISO shall
provide to the Facility during its 25-year term. As of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and
March 31, 2022, the Company incurred total costs $2.9 million pertaining to the LGIA, which are
classified as Intangible assets on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.
Amortization totaled $21 thousand during both three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively, and is included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Electrical Interconnect Agreements

The Company is also party to two Electrical Interconnect Agreements (EICH) with two separate
third parties for the construction of upgrades on their respective systems. The Company incurred
total costs of $21.3 million as of March 31, 2023, $21.3 million as of December 31, 2022 and $14.8
million as of March 31, 2022, respectively, which are classified as Intangible assets on the
accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets. Amortization totaled $125 thousand and $50
thousand for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is
included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income.

(b) Potable Water Supply Sewer Discharge Agreements

(i)

(ii)

Township

Potable water and sewer discharge associated with the Facility’s use is sourced from a local town
(Town) sewer and water systems pursuant to the Out of District User Agreement (ODU Agreement)
between the Company and the Town. The ODU Agreement allows the Company, at its own
expense, to both connect to and receive potable water from the local water district and to connect
to and receive service from the local sewer service district. The ODU Agreement is valid as long as
the Facility is operational. The ODU Agreement establishes a user fee applied to the consumption
of water. The Company incurred $10 thousand for both the three-month periods ended March 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively, of water and sewer expense which is included in Operating expenses
in the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.
There are no future commitments as these are service contracts.

City

The Company is party to an Amended Effluent Water Supply and Process Water Discharge
Service Agreement (AWSPDA) with a local city (City). The AWSPDA allows the Company to obtain
0.5 million gallons of treated effluent water from the City’s wastewater treatment facility for the

Facility’s use and on-site storage. The City will provide treated effluent and accept process water
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from the Facility for specified quantities and rates. The AWSPDA has a base term of forty years,
from October 14, 2013, with two 10-year options exercisable by the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the AWSPDA, the Company was responsible for the construction and
operation of a pump station, chlorine injection system, pipelines, and other related facilities
(WSPDA Interconnection Facilities), which the Company retains title to. Upon the termination of the
AWSPA, the AWSPA provides the City the option to purchase the WSPDA Interconnection
Facilities at fair value and if not purchased by the City, obligates the Company to remove and/or
abandon these facilities upon their decommissioning. Total costs to construct the AWSPDA
Interconnection Facilities totaled $1.1 million and was capitalized as part of Property, plant and
equipment, net.

Tax Agreements

The Company executed a payment in lieu of taxes agreement (PILOT Agreement) with an Industrial
Development Authority (IDA). In connection with entering into the PILOT Agreement, the Company
entered into a lease agreement (the Lease Agreement) with IDA. The Lease Agreement required the
Company to transfer its ownership interest in the land, on which the Facility was constructed, to the
IDA. In return, the Company receives certain tax exemptions and deferrals. The IDA then leased the
land back to the Company. In lieu of paying property taxes, the Company is required to pay the IDA
scheduled PILOT Agreement payments for the construction period plus 20 years following the Facility’s
COD.

Under the PILOT Agreement, the Company incurred its required annual land and Special Improvement
District (SID) PILOT obligations of $0.3 million for both three-month periods ended March 31, 2023,
and 2022, respectively and is included in Taxes other than income taxes on the accompanying interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. The PILOT Agreement terminates
on December 31, 2039, at which point the assets are transferred back to the Company. The Company
is also required to pay SID charges to the fire district and for water and sewer services, which
additional charges are incorporated into the amounts above.

Other Municipal Agreements

The Company entered into an IDA Fee Letter Agreement (IDALA) with the IDA. The agreement
provided required approvals or authorizations allowing the Facility to be constructed. The IDALA
required the Company to pay IDA $2.7 million in five installments. The Company paid the last
installment of $0.5 million during 2019, and is included in Property plant and equipment, net on the
accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets under the IDALA.

The Company entered into a Host Community Agreement (HCA) with the Town to compensate the
community for it being impacted during the construction of the Facility. The Company incurred $77
thousand and $75 thousand during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023, and 2022,
respectively, and included as Taxes other than income taxes in the accompanying interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income.
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Capacity Auctions and Bilateral Contracts

The Company participates in NYISO capacity auctions. The auctions are either seasonal, monthly or
spot month and are for the sale of unforced capacity (UCAP) in New York. The Company recognized
revenue from capacity and power generation of $53.3 million and $124.2 million for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is included in Operating revenues on the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Long-Term Program Contract

The Company entered into a Long-Term Program Contract (LTPC) with the Original Equipment
Manufacturer (the OEM), whereby the OEM provides scheduled and unscheduled outage maintenance
parts and services for the combustion turbines. The LTPC required that fixed and variable payments
commence on the date the turbines were first fired and terminates the earlier of 132,800 equivalent
base load hours or 29 years from June 9, 2015.

The Company incurred $1.5 million and $1.6 million for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively, under the LTPC, which are classified as Operating expenses on the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Gas Supply Agreement

The Company is party to a Base Contract for the Sale and Purchase of Natural Gas (GSPA) with a Gas
Supplier (Gas Supplier), whereby the Gas Supplier provides gas supply of up to 127,200 MMBtu/day at
a price indexed to market. The term of the GSPA commenced on January 1, 2018 to accommodate the
first fire of the Facility and extends to May 31, 2023. The GSPA was amended on October 4, 2021, to
extend the term of the agreement to October 31, 2025. Pursuant to the GSPA, the Gas Supplier is
responsible for transporting natural gas to the designated delivery point.

The Company purchased $22.4 million and $54.8 million for the three-month periods ended March 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively, of natural gas under the GSPA, which is included in Fuel and other on the
accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

The Company owed the Gas Supplier $5.4 million, $24.4 million, and $14.2 million as of March 31,
2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable
and accrued expenses on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

Gas Transportation Agreements

The Company and a Pipeline Company (PC) entered into the Amended and Restated Precedent
Agreement (APA), for the permitting, construction, operating, and maintenance of a 16-inch lateral
pipeline and metering and regulating facilities (the PC Lateral Facilities) from the PC interstate natural
gas transmission pipeline system to the Facility. Pursuant to the terms of the APA, the Company was
responsible for the cost to construct the PC Lateral Facilities while PC retained title to the PC Lateral
Facilities. PC will provide firm natural gas transportation service through the PC Lateral Facilities. As of
March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2023, the Company incurred $2.4 million under
the APA, which is classified as Intangible assets on the accompanying interim consolidated balance
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sheets. Amortization totaled $17 thousand, for both the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively, which is included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying
interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

The Company entered into a LFT Service Agreement (TSA) whereby PC will provide 127,200 Dth/day
of capacity on the PC Lateral Facilities at $0.1731 Dth/day. On October 26, 2018, PC filed at the FERC
the statement of costs incurred for the PC Lateral Facilities, and pursuant to the PA, amended the
demand rates to $0.2942 Dth/day. The terms of the TSA provide the Company the right to extend the
original 15-year term, for up to three periods of five additional years.

In addition, the Company and PC are party to a FT-1 Service Agreement (FT TSA). Pursuant to the
terms of the FT TSA, PC provides 35,000 Dth/day of firm transportation service commencing on April 1,
2018 for a period of 15 years ending March 31, 2033. The Company incurred $5.3 million for both
three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, of firm transmission service which
is classified as Fuel and other on the accompanying interim consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income.

The Company owed PC $1.8 million for as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31,
2022, which is included in Accounts payable and accrued expenses on the accompanying interim
consolidated balance sheets.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is not aware of any direct or indirect involvement it has in pending claims or litigation and
believes the effects of any pending claims, litigation, or legal proceedings, if any, will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows.

(8) Related Parties Agreements

(a)

(b)

Promissory Notes — Related Party

During 2021, with its WC Facility fully utilized, the Company requested funding of $2.9 million from its
Members. The Company issued promissory notes (Promissory Notes) of $1.5 million to both CPV
PHLP and the Third-Party member. CPV funded the Promissory Note using cash previously deposited
into the Company’s restricted cash account and the Third-Party member deposited $1.5 million into the
restricted cash account. Given their subordinate nature, the Promissory Notes are not expected to be
repaid in 2023. The Promissory Notes bear interest at 5% annually.

Asset Management Agreement

The Company entered into an asset management agreement (AMA) with Competitive Power Ventures,
Inc. (CPVI), whereby CPVI provides construction and asset management services. The AMA includes
a fixed fee escalated annually by a defined inflation index, an incentive fee, and for the reimbursement
of expenses. The AMA also provides reimbursement to CPVI for construction management services,
which includes CPVI construction staff time, expenses, and payments to third-party vendors. The
agreement has an initial term of five years beyond the Facility’s substantial completion date and has a
renewal term of an additional three years. The Company also incurred asset management related
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services of $0.5 million and $0.4 million for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, which is included in Operating expenses on the accompanying interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

The Company owed CPVI $0.2 million, $0.1 million, and $0.1 million as of March 31, 2023, December
31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable and accrued
expenses on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

(c) Operations and Maintenance Agreement

The Company executed an operating and maintenance agreement (O&M Agreement) with a related
Party (RP), to operate and maintain the Facility. The agreement has an initial term of five years beyond
the Facility’s substantial completion date and has a renewal term of an additional three years. The
Company is required to pay RP a fixed annual management fee, an operator bonus of up to

$0.2 million per year, and to reimburse RP for reimbursable costs and operating costs as defined by
the O&M Agreement. The Company incurred $1.3 million for both three-month periods ended March
31, 2023 and 2022, which is classified as Operating expense on the accompanying interim
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

The Company owed RP $1.1 million, $1.2 million and $0.8 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31,
2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable and accrued expenses
on the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets.

(d) Energy Management Agreement

Under the Company’s energy management agreement (EMA) with a related Party (RP2), RP2 assists the
Company in establishing the energy management plans, risk management and execution strategies. On
September 23, 2022, the Company amended the EMA to extend the terms for another one year till October
31, 2023 and can be extended at the request of the Company. The Company may terminate the EMA by
providing a thirty-day notification. Under the EMA, EMRP receives a monthly management fee and is
reimbursed for all gas and power broker fees directly related to transacting on behalf of the Company.
Management fees incurred under the EM totaled $90 thousand for both three-month periods ended March
31, 2023 and 2022, which is included in Operating expenses on the accompanying interim consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between March 31, 2023 and May 18,
2023, which is the date the interim consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, for
possible disclosure and recognition in the interim consolidated financial statements.

There were no subsequent events identified that necessitated disclosure and/or adjustment to the
Company’s interim consolidated financial statements for the three-months ended March 31, 2023.
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KPMG'

KPMG LLP
1601 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2499

Independent Auditors’ Review Report

The Members of
CPV Towantic, LLC

Results of Review of Interim Financial Information

We have reviewed the financial statements of CPV Towantic, LLC (the Company), which comprise the balance
sheet as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of operations and comprehensive income,
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, and
the related notes (collectively referred to as the interim financial information).

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying interim financial information for it to be in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Basis for Review Results

We conducted our reviews in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) applicable to reviews of interim financial information. A review of interim financial information
consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial
and accounting matters. A review of interim financial information is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS, the objective of which is an expression of an opinion regarding the
financial information as a whole, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our reviews. We believe that the results of the review procedures provide a
reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Interim Financial Information

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the interim financial information in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of interim financial information
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Report on Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2022

We have previously audited, in accordance with GAAS, the balance sheet as of December 31, 2022, and the
related statements of operations and comprehensive income, changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for
the year then ended (not presented herein); and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated March 23, 2023. In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet of the

KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and a member firm of
the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with
KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.



KPMG

Company as of December 31, 2022 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements
from which it has been derived.

KPMe P

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
May 18, 2023



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

(In thousands)

At March 31, At December 31,
Assets 2023 2022 2022
Current assets:
Cash $ 100 100 90
Restricted cash 10,884 18,853 42,251
Accounts receivable 9,104 21,400 15,337
Deposits 14 1,187 14,000
Prepaid expenses 3,111 1,214 1,172
Fuel inventory 2,409 2,436 2,409
Emission credits inventory 6,868 6,252 921
Derivative assets, interest rate swaps 9,589 — 10,518
Total current assets 42,079 51,442 86,698
Property, plant, and equipment, net 758,664 783,649 764,996
Long-term deposits 1 16 16
Restricted cash 75,408 77,329 77,587
Spare parts inventory 4432 4,208 4,087
Derivative assets, interest rate swaps 5,133 5,912 8,170
Intangible assets, net 53.965 57.474 54,842
Total assets $ 939,682 980,030 996,396
Liabilities and Members’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 15,871 25,921 21,025
Current portion of long term debt 61,860 67,966 114,580
Derivative liabilities, interest rate swaps — 705 —
Derivative liabilities, energy 981 30.569 -
Total current liabilities 78,712 125,161 135,605
Long-term debt 416,426 499,822 429,032
Other long-term liabilities 3,320 4,200 3,547
Derivative liabilities, energy 31,726 22,814 58,205
Total liabilities 530,184 651,997 626,389
Commitments and contingencies (notes 7 and 8)
Members' equity 409,498 328,033 370,007
Total liabilities and members’ equity $ 939,682 980,030 996,396

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC

(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)

(In thousands)

For the three-month periods

Operating revenue $
Unrealized income (loss) on energy derivatives

Total operating revenue

Fuel and other

Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Taxes other than income taxes

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Interest expense, net

Net income

Other comprehensive income:
Comprehensive (loss) income — interest rate swaps

Comprehensive income $

2023 2022
88,388 148 547
25498 (2.555)

113,886 145,992
42,020 108,091
13,694 13,414

7,209 7,192
836 839
63,759 129536
50,127 16,456
(6.670) (6,969)
43 457 9,487
(3.966) 15,803
39,491 25.290

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Statements of Changes in Members' Equity (Unaudited)

(In thousands)
Accumulated
other Total
Members’ Accumulated comprehensive members’
equity deficit (loss) income equity
Balance, December 31, 2021 $ 224 151 89,189 (10,597) 302,743
Netincome — 37,980 — 37,980
Comprehensive income - interest rate swaps — — 29,284 29,284
Total comprehensive income 67,264
Balance, December 31, 2022 224 151 127,169 18,687 370,007
Netincome — 43,457 — 43 457
Comprehensive loss - interest rate swaps — — (3,966) (3,966)
Total comprehensive income 39,491
Balance, March 31, 2023 $ 224 151 170,626 14,721 409,498

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC

(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of debt related costs
Change in fair value, energy derivative
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Fuel inventory
Emissions inventory
Spare parts inventory
Prepaid expenses
Deposits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Property, plant, and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Proceeds from long term revolver debt
Repayment of long term debt
Repayment of long term revolver debt

Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash

Cash and restricted cash at beginning of the year
Cash and restricted cash at end of the year

Cash paid for interest and financing fees
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Liabilities incurred for property, plant, and equipment

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the three-month periods
ended March 31,

2023 2022

$ 43,457 9.487
7,209 7.192

425 438

(25,498) 2,556

6,233 12,181
—_ (12)
(5.947) (6.252)
(345) (138)
(1,939) (110)
14,001 (1,189)

(5.153) 3.857

32.443 28,010
— (182)
— (182)

4,440 1,260
(63,919) (10,316)
(6.500) (1.000)
(65.979) (10,056)
(33.536) 17,772
119,928 78.510

$ 86.392 96,282
$ 7,705 6.591



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

CPV Towantic, LLC (Towantic or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company, was formed on
October 26, 1998. The purpose of Towantic is to construct, finance, own, and operate a 785-megawatt
(MW) gas-fired, combined-cycle power project located in Oxford, Connecticut (the Facility or Project). The
Facility commenced operations and was placed in service on June 1, 2018 (COD).

As of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, Towantic’s equity interests were held by
three members: CPV Towantic Holding Company, LLC, a subsidiary of CPV Power Holdings, LP (CPV
PHLP) 26%. The two remaining equity members held 49%, and 25% of the equity interests.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of Presentation

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (U.S. GAAP). The Accounting Standards Codification (ASC), established by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), is the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP applied by
nongovernmental entities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions
based on management’s knowledge and experience. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the
reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used.

Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation Expense

The Company’s property, plant, and equipment is recorded based on historical cost and primarily
comprise generation assets and the cost of acquired land.

Depreciation, after consideration of salvage value and asset retirement obligations, is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, commencing when assets, or
major components thereof, are either placed in service or acquired (note 2). Repairs and maintenance
costs are expenses as incurred.

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance with ASC 360,
Property, Plant, and Equipment (ASC 360). Factors that could indicate impairment include significant
underperformance relative to historical and projected future operating results, significant changes in the
manner of use of acquired assets, or the strategy of the Company’s overall business, including
significant negative industry and economic trends. If an indicator of impairment is identified, the
carrying amount of the Company’s long-lived assets would be considered impaired when their
anticipated undiscounted cash flows are less than their carrying value. Impairment is measured as the
difference between the discounted expected future cash flows and the assets’ carrying amount.

The Company has not recognized impairment losses on its long-lived assets for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.
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CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

Risks and Uncertainties

As with any power generation facility, operation of the Facility involves risk, including the performance
of the Facility below expected levels of efficiency and output, shutdowns due to the breakdown or
failure of equipment or processes, violations of permit requirements, operator error, labor disputes, or
catastrophic events such as fires, earthquakes, floods, explosions, pandemics, including COVID-19, or
other similar occurrences affecting a power generation facility or its power purchasers. In addition, the
Facility operates as a merchant plant and is impacted by changes in regional natural gas and power
market conditions, as well as changes in the rules and regulations governing these markets. The
Company has taken steps to mitigate the potential risks posed by COVID-19 and the impacts to date
have been minimal; however, since this is an evolving situation, the Company cannot predict the extent
or impact of this pandemic on its business. The occurrence of any of these events could significantly
reduce or eliminate revenue generated by the Company or significantly increase the expenses of the
Company, and adversely impact the Company’s ability to make payments on its debt when due.

Income Taxes

The Company is organized as a limited liability company and is classified and treated as a partnership
for federal and state income tax purposes. No provision for the payment of federal and state income
taxes has been provided since the Company is not subject to income tax. Each member is responsible
for reporting income or loss based on such member’s respective share of the Company’s income and
expenses as reported for income tax purposes. As such, no income tax expense or benefit has been
recorded within the financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable,
deposits, prepaid expenses and accounts payable and accrued expenses, equals or approximates their
fair value due to the short-term maturity of those instruments. Cash accounts are generally maintained
in federally insured banks but may at times have balances in accounts in excess of federally insured
limits. The fair value of the long-term debt approximates its book value as of March 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, as the interest rates are variable (note 4).

Cash
Cash comprises highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.
Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash and cash equivalents that comprise highly liquid investments. Such
amounts are restricted under the terms of the Company’s Credit Agreement (note 4). Restricted cash
accounts include, but are not limited to, an operating account, revenue account, and a letter-of-credit
revolver account. All such accounts are held, and maintained, by an agent. The Company’s
classification of restricted cash is based on the classification of its intended use. As of March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, the Company had $10.9 million, $42.3 million and

$18.9 million, respectively, pertaining to operating activities classified as current assets. The Company
also had $75.4 million, $77.6 million and $77.3 million of restricted cash classified as noncurrent on the
accompanying interim balance sheets as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022,
of which $0.0 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million, respectively, pertains to cash collateral — ISO-NE,
and $75.4 million, $77.4 million and $77.2 million, respectively, pertains to cash collateral — letters of
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CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

credit. Restricted cash and long-term restricted cash totaled $86.3 million, $119.8 million and
$96.2 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively.

Prepaid Expenses

Current prepaid expenses consist of insurance premiums, labor costs, bank fees, and other
miscellaneous fees totaling $3.1 million, $1.2 million and $1.2 million as of March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, on the accompanying interim balance sheets.

Emission Credits Inventory

Emission credits consist primarily of CO2 allowances under the regional greenhouse gas initiative
(RGGI) program which are held for use by the Company and are stated at the lower of weighted
average cost or net realizable value. The Company had emission credits inventory of $6.9 million,
$0.9 million and $6.3 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022,
respectively, on the accompanying interim balance sheets.

Fuel Inventory

Fuel inventory primarily consists of fuel oil used to generate power. Fuel oil is carried at the lower of
cost or net realizable value. The cost of fuel oil is comprised of its purchase price and incidental
expenditures to deliver it to the Facility. The cost is reduced to net realizable value if the net realizable
value of inventory has declined and it is probable that the utility of inventory, in its disposal in the
ordinary course of business, will not be recovered through revenue earned from the generation of
power. A lower of cost or net realizable value provision of $0.0 million was included in Fuel and other
on the accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive income for both three-
month periods ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. The Company had Fuel inventory of

$2.4 million for the periods ended March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, on the
accompanying interim balance sheets.

(m) Spare Parts Inventory

Spare parts inventory primarily consists of spare parts and supplies used to maintain the power
generation facility. Spare parts inventory is carried at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is the
sum of the purchase price and incidental expenditures and charges incurred to bring the inventory to its
existing condition or location. Costs of spare parts are valued primarily using the average cost method.
Generally, cost is reduced to net realizable value if the net realizable value of inventory has declined
and it is probable that the utility of inventory, in its disposal in the ordinary course of business, will not
be recovered through revenue earned from the generation of power. The Company’s Spare parts
inventory balance was $4.4 million, $4.1 million and $4.2 million for the periods ended March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, on the accompanying interim balance sheets.
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March 31, 2023

Deposits

The Company posted collateral as required under certain gas and commodity swap trades
arrangements with third parties to cover commodity price exposure. The deposits are expected to be
returned or utilized within 12 months and are classified as current Deposits and totaled $0.0 million,
$14.0 million and $1.2 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022,
respectively.

Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and
Other (ASC 350). ASC 350 requires that intangible assets determined to have indefinite lives no longer
be amortized but instead be tested for impairment at least annually and whenever events or
circumstances occur that indicate impairment might have occurred. ASC 350 also requires that
intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives
and reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of an asset may not be recoverable. Separable intangible assets that are deemed to have finite
lives will continue to be amortized using the straight-line method over their estimable useful lives.

Deferred Financing Costs

The Company capitalizes costs associated with obtaining its third-party financing. Direct costs incurred
with obtaining debt are amortized under the effective interest method over the term of the related debt.
Amortization of these costs totaled $0.7 million for both three-month periods ended March 31, 2023
and 2022, and is classified as Interest expense, net on the accompanying interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income.

For the periods ended March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, the current portion of
long-term debt is shown net of $2.6 million of unamortized deferred financing costs. Long-term debt is
presented net of $3.3 million, $3.9 million and $5.9 million of unamortized deferred financing costs as of
March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, on the accompanying interim
balance sheets.

Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into interest rate swaps associated with its debt facility to reduce its exposure to
market risks from changing interest rates and forward purchase and sales of commodities, and other
derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices.
The Company recognizes all contracts that meet the definition of a derivative as either assets or
liabilities in the accompanying interim balance sheets and measures those derivatives at fair value
under ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815). On the date a derivative is entered into, the
Company may designate hedging relationships as long as certain criteria in ASC 815 are met;
otherwise, the derivative is marked to market in the Company’s statements of operations and
comprehensive income. The Company documents all relationships between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy. This process includes linking all
derivatives that are designated as hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the accompanying interim
balance sheets or to forecasted transactions. The Company also assesses, both at the hedge’s
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items.

10
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(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

When it is determined that a derivative has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the Company
discontinues hedge accounting prospectively. This could occur when: (1) it is determined that a
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of a hedged item; (2) the
derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; or (3) the derivative is discontinued as a hedging
instrument, because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur. When hedge accounting is
discontinued because it is determined that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge of
cash flows, the derivative will continue to be carried at fair value on the accompanying interim balance
sheets, and the gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive income or loss

(OCI) are recognized immediately or over the remaining term of the forecasted transaction in the
accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are either recognized in the accompanying interim
statements of operations and comprehensive income or the accompanying interim statements of
changes in members’ equity as a component of accumulated OCI, depending upon their use and
designation. Gains and losses related to transactions that qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in
accumulated OCI and flow through the accompanying interim statements of operations and
comprehensive income in the period the hedged item affects earnings. Otherwise, any gains and
losses resulting from changes in the market value of the contracts are recorded in the accompanying
interim statements of operations and comprehensive income in the current period. Alternatively, certain
derivative instruments are accounted for on an accrual basis, if the criteria for normal purchase normal
sale (NPNS) are met. The Company entered into the Forward Capacity Auction with ISO New England,
Inc. (ISO-NE) and was awarded certain contracts for the period beginning in June 2018. As permitted
by ISO-NE, the Company locked in the price of some of its awarded capacity for seven years. The
Company has elected NPNS treatment for these contracts.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of
accounts receivable, which are concentrated within the energy industry and derivative financial
instruments. These industry concentrations may impact the Company’s overall exposure to credit risk,
either positively or negatively, in that the customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic,
industry or other conditions. Receivables and other contractual arrangements are subject to collateral
requirements under the terms of enabling agreements. However, the Company believes that the credit
risk posed by industry concentration is offset by the diversification and creditworthiness of the
Company’s customer base and its contractual collateral requirements.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to claims and proceedings arising in the normal course of business. The
Company records a loss contingency in accordance with ASC 450, Contingencies (ASC 450), when it
is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Management assesses each matter and determines the likelihood a loss has been incurred and the
amount of such loss if it can be reasonably estimated. Management reviews such matters on an
ongoing basis. Contingencies are evaluated based on estimates and judgments made by management
with respect to the likely outcome of such matters. Management’s estimates could change based on
new information.

11



CPV TOWANTIC, LLC
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2023

The Company follows the guidance of ASC 460, Guarantees (ASC 460), for disclosing and accounting
for guarantees and indemnifications entered into during the course of business. When a guarantee or
indemnification subject to ASC 460 is entered into, the estimated fair value of the guarantee or
indemnification is assessed. Some guarantees and indemnifications could have a financial impact
under certain circumstances. Management considers the probability of such circumstances occurring
when estimating fair value.

(s) Membership Interests

(¥

Profits, losses, and distributions of net cash flows shall be allocated in proportion to each member’s
respective ownership interest, as outlined in the Fifth Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement (ARLLCA), as amended. As a limited liability company, the liability of each
member is limited to (i) any unpaid capital contributions, (ii) the amount of any distributions required to
be returned in accordance with the agreement, and (iii) any amount the member is required to pay
pursuant to the agreement.

The members did not make any capital contributions to the Company during both three-month periods
ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

The Company did not make any distributions during both three-month periods ended March 31, 2023
and 2022.

Contemporaneous with the execution of the Credit Agreement (CA), all members of the Company
executed an agreement, which pledged their respective equity interests in the Company.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

The Company accounts for its revenue in accordance with ASC 606 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (ASC 606). Revenue is earned from the Company's generation facilities providing capacity
and ancillary services to the Company's customer, the independent system operator (ISO), and from
the production and sale of electricity from the Company's generation facilities. Revenue is recognized
upon the transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Company’s contracts to provide capacity each have one performance obligation and are a result
from auctions held by the ISO to procure capacity at least three years in advance of when the capacity
is expected to be needed and thus to be provided. The Company’s contracts to provide electricity and
ancillary services have their own performance obligations.

The performance obligations are satisfied over time and use the same method to measure progress, so
they meet the criteria to be considered a series. In measuring progress towards satisfaction of each
performance obligation, the Company applies the “right-to-invoice” practical expedient and recognizes
revenue in the amount to which the Company has a right to consideration from a customer that
corresponds directly with the value of the performance completed to date. Performance obligations
including energy or ancillary services (such as operations and maintenance and dispatch services) are
generally measured by the MWh delivered. Capacity, which is a stand-ready obligation to deliver
energy when required by the customer, is measured using MWs. For the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2023 and 2022, capacity revenues were $25.8 million and $24.9 million, respectively, which
are reflected as a component of Operating revenue in the accompanying interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income.

12
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Accounts receivable are stated at the actual billed amount net of an allowance for bad debts, if needed.
There was no such allowance as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 or March 31, 2022. The
Company assesses the collectability of accounts receivable based on factors such as specific
evaluation, age of the receivable, and other available information.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Adopted)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new standard establishes a
right-of-use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either
finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income
statement. In November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10, Effective Dates (ASU 2019-10) which
adjusted the effective date of this guidance to January 1, 2021. In June 2020, the FASB issued

ASU No 2020-05, which further adjusted the effective date of this guidance to January 1, 2022. The
Company adopted the standard effective January 1, 2022, utilizing the required modified retrospective
approach which allows the requirements of the standard in the period of adoption with no restatement
of prior periods. The Company applied the new guidance with the “package of three” transition practical
expedients permitted, including the expedient: which must be taken together and allow entities to (1)
not reassess whether existing contracts contain leases (2) carryforward the existing lease
classification, and (3) not reassess initial direct costs associated with existing leases. There was no
material impact to the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments
(Topic 326) (ASU 2016-13) that provides for a new Current Expected Credit Loss (CECL) impairment
model for specified financial instruments including loans, trade receivables, debt securities classified as
held-to-maturity investments and net investments in leases recognized by a lessor. Under the new
guidance, on initial recognition and at each reporting period, an entity is required to recognize an
allowance that reflects the entity’s current estimate of credit losses expected to be incurred over the life
of the financial instrument. The standard does not make changes to the existing impairment models for
non-financial assets such as fixed assets, intangibles and goodwill. In November 2019, the

FASB issued ASU 2019-10, which adjusts effective date of this standard to January 1, 2023. The
Company adopted the standard effective January 1, 2023, of prior periods. There was no material
impact to the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.
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Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net

Property, plant, and equipment, net consists of the following:

Estimated March 31, December 31, March 31,
useful life 2023 2022 2022
(In years) (In thousands)
Land N/A $ 1,260 1,260 1,260
Generation facility 35 872,186 872,186 871,927
Capitalized Spares 20 6,860 6,860 6,860
Office furniture and fixtures 10 151 151 151
Tools and plant equipment 10 42 42 —
Computer hardware and software 3 532 532 532
Vehicles 5 281 281 281
Total 881,312 881,312 881,011
Construction in progress 42 42 7
Accumulated depreciation (122,690) (116,358) (97,369)
Property, plant, and
equipment, net $ 758,664 764,996 783,649

Depreciation totaled $6.3 million for both the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, which
is classified as Depreciation and amortization to the accompanying interim statements of operations and
comprehensive income. The cost to acquire land and secure easements are both classified as land and

included in Property, plant, and equipment, net on the accompanying interim balance sheets.

Intangible Assets

The Company recognized separately identifiable intangible assets related to the electrical interconnection,
natural gas interconnection and a water supply and sewer agreement required to operate the Facility. The
Company paid for the cost of the electrical and gas interconnection as well as water supply upgrades but
did not retain title to the assets. Upon COD, the Company commenced the amortization of its intangible
assets using the straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives which range between

20 to 35 years.
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Intangible assets are as follows:

Estimated March 31, December 31, March 31,
useful life 2023 2022 2022
(In years) (In thousands)
Gas interconnection 35 $ 1,294 1,294 1,294
Water interconnection 35 440 440 440
Electrical interconnection 20 69,195 69,195 69,195
Total 70,929 70,929 70,929
Accumulated amortization (16,964) (16,087) (13,455)
Intangible assets, net $ 53,965 54,842 57,474

Amortization of intangible assets totaled $0.9 million as of both three-month periods ended March 31, 2023
and 2022, which is classified as Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income. Amortization expense related to the years 2023 through 2027 is

expected to be approximately $3.5 million, annually.

Debt Facilities

The Company is a borrower under a $753.3 million credit agreement (the Credit Agreement or CA) with a
syndicate of lenders led by CIT Bank, N.A., Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank and MUFG

Union Bank, N.A. The CA provides the Company a Term Loan facility (Term Loan Facility) of

$655.0 million, a Working Capital facility (WC Facility) of $21.0 million, a Revolving Letter of Credit Loan
facility (RLC Loan Facility) of $77.3 million, and a Letter of Credit Facility (LC Facility) to be used for

specified purposes over the term of CA.

The table below summarizes the Company’s outstanding debt, net of unamortized deferred financing costs

as of:
March 31, December 31, March 31,
Description 2023 2022 2022
(In thousands)

Term Loan Facility $ 409,058 472,976 499,109
RLC Loan Facility 75,100 77,160 77,160
Unamortized deferred financing costs (5,872) (6,524) (8,481)
Total $ 478,286 543,612 567,788
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Borrowings for all facilities under the CA bear interest at the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus
an applicable margin. The applicable margin during the term of the CA is as follows:

On the closing date and until (but excluding)

the conversion date 3.00 %
On the conwersion date 2.75
On the third anniversary of the conversion date 3.00
On the fifth anniversary of the conwersion date 3.25

Unused available credit under the CA incurs a commitment fee of 0.50% per annum. During the three-
month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company incurred $7.6 million and $6.6 million,
respectively, of interest expense and commitment fees, which are classified as Interest expense, net on the
accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive income.

The outstanding Term Loan Facility balance was $409.1 million, $473.0 million and $499.1 million at an
annual rate of 7.64%, 7.39% and 3.21% at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022,
respectively. The CA requires repayments of borrowings under the Term Loan Facility be made quarterly.
The quarterly payments will be made for a period of seven years with a balloon payment due at the end of
the term on June 30, 2025.

The WC Facility of $21.0 million became available once the Facility commenced operations. There was a
$15.0 million borrowing on May 9, 2022 and subsequent repayment on September 30, 2022; however no
outstanding borrowings under the WC Facility as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31,
2022.

Borrowings under the RLC Loan Facility totaled $75.1 million, $77.2 million and $77.2 million as of March
31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, which serve as collateral for letters of
credit issued under the LC Facility.

Issued letters of credit totaled $75.1 million, $77.2 million and $77.2 million as of March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively. The issued letters of credit are required under the
Company’s gas transportation, electric interconnection, and certain construction work agreements.
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The scheduled increase in the applicable margin for the Term Loan Facility is recognized as a long-term
liability. The liability totaled $3.3 million, $3.5 million and $4.2 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31,
2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, and is classified as Other long-term liabilities on the accompanying
interim balance sheets. During both the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, accretion
income totaled $0.2 million, and are included in Interest expense, net on the accompanying interim
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

The CA required the Company to pledge all its assets as security in favor of the lenders.

(5) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
(a) Interest Rate Swaps

The Company enters into pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to
market risks from changing interest rates. Interest rate swap agreements are used to convert the
floating interest rate component of the Company’s long-term debt obligations to fixed rates. Such
interest rate swap agreements are designated as cash flow hedges under ASC 815. All effective
changes in fair market value are deferred in OCI and all ineffective changes are recognized in the
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

As part of entering into the CA, the Company executed 20 amortizing interest rate swaps with ten
financial institutions, collectively referred to herein as Swap A. The swaps were designated to hedge
85% of the Company’s Term Loan Facility for the operating periods. On April 30, 2020, the Company
entered into three additional swaps (collectively Swap B), which matured on March 31, 2022.

The fair value of the interest rate swap assets totaled $14.7 million, $18.7 million and $5.9 million as of
March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, of which $9.6 million,

$10.5 million and $0.0 million, respectively, are classified as current and $5.1 million, $8.2 million and
$5.9 million, respectively, as noncurrent Derivative assets, interest rate swaps on the accompanying
interim balance sheets.
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The fair value of the interest rate swap liabilities totaled $0.7 million as of March 31, 2022, which are
classified as current as Derivative liabilities, interest rate swaps on the accompanying interim balance
sheets. There were no interest rates classified as Derivative liabilities on the accompanying interim
balance sheets as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

The details of these instruments as of March 31, 2023 are set forth in the following table:

Swap period Dates Swap details Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3 Swap 4 Swap 5 Swap 6 Swap 7 Swap 8 Swap 9 Swap 10
SwapA:

Trade date March 11,2016 Notionalamount § 55,653,790 55,653,790 55,653,790 30,353,260 30,353,260 30,353,260 30,353,260 30,353,260 30,353,260 19,731,463

Hfective date April 30,2018 Fixed rate 19375 1.9375 19375 19375 1.9375 1.9375 19375 1.9375 1.9375 19375

Termination date  June 30, 2025 Floatingrate ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBORBBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA  USD-LBOR-BBA  USD-LBOR-BBA

The details of these instruments as of December 31, 2022 are set forth in the following table:

Swap period Dates Swap details Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3 Swap 4 Swap 5 Swap 6 Swap 7 Swap 8 Swap 9 Swap 10
SwapA:

Trade date March 11,2016 Notional amount § 58,121,891 58,121,891 58,121,891 31,698,803 31,698,803 31,698,803 31,698,803 31,698,803 31,698,803 20,606,148

Hfective date April 30, 2018 Fixed rate 19375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375

Termination date June 30, 2025 Floating rate USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA  USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA  USD-LIBOR-BBA

The details of these instruments as of March 31, 2022 are set forth in the following table:

Swap period Dates Swap details Swap 1 Swap 2 Swap 3 Swap 4 Swap 5 Swap 6 Swap 7 Swap 8 Swap 9 Swap 10
SwapA:

Trade date March 11,2016 Notional amount $ 62,861,332 62,861,332 62,861,332 34,284212 34,284.212 34,284,212 34,284,212 34,284212 34,284.212 22,286,821

Effective date April 30,2018 Fixed rate 19375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375 1.9375

Termination date June 30, 2025 Floating rate USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA ~ USD-LBOR-BBA  USD-LBOR-BBA  USD-LIBOR-BBA

As of March 31, 2023, the Company estimates $9.7 million of loss will be reclassified out of OCI over
the next 12 months; however, actual results may differ due to changes in market conditions during the
same time period. OCI attributable to the interest rate swaps is reclassified as Interest expense, net (in
thousands):

OCIl rollforward:

Ending balance as of December 31, 2021 $ (10,597)
Amount of gain recognized in OCI on derivatives 28,154
Amount of gain reclassified from OCI to Interest expense 1,130

Ending balance as of December 31, 2022 18,687
Amount of loss recognized in OCI on derivatives (1,469)
Amount of loss reclassified from OCI to Interest expense (2,497)

Ending balance as of March 31, 2023 $ 14,721
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(b) Commodity Derivatives

(c)

The Company may enter into forward purchases, and sales of commodities, and other derivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to market fluctuations of energy and natural gas prices. These
instruments are used to manage the Company’s exposure to volatility in commaodity prices. The
Company does not enter into such instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

The fair value of the power and gas commaodity swaps liabilities totaled $32.7 million, $58.2 million and
$53.4 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively. The liability
balance consists of a current portion of $1.0 million, $0.0 million and $30.6 million and a noncurrent
portion of $31.7 million, $58.2 million and $22.8 million as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and
March 31, 2022, respectively. The commodity derivatives had an unrealized gain of $25.5 million and
unrealized loss of $2.6 million during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, which are included in the accompanying interim statements of operations and
comprehensive income as Unrealized loss on energy derivatives and realized loss of $0.0 million and
realized loss of $8.5 million during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, which is included in the accompanying interim statements of operations and
comprehensive income as Operating revenue.

The following table summarizes the aggregate notional value of the commodity derivatives as of March
31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022:

Natural Gas Power
(In Mmbtu) (In MWh)
March 31, 2023 25,640,400 3,876,000
December 31, 2022 45,614,400 7,017,600
March 31, 2022 102,797,400 12,562,800

The Company did not enter into any other types of derivative contracts during 2023 and 2022.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company records the fair value of all derivatives as assets and liabilities. In determining fair value,
the Company generally uses the income approach and incorporates assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and/or the risks
inherent in the inputs to the valuation techniques. These inputs can be readily observable; markets
corroborated or are generally unobservable internally developed inputs. Derivative assets and liabilities
are classified depending on how readily observable the inputs used in the valuation techniques are as
follows:

Level 1 — Represents unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. This category includes energy derivative
instruments that are exchange traded or that are cleared and settled through the exchange.
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Level 2 — Represents quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
market prices in markets that are not active, or other valuations based on inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data. This category includes the Company’s interest rate
swaps.

Level 3 — This category includes energy derivative instruments whose fair value is estimated based on
internally developed models and methodologies utilizing significant inputs that are generally less readily
observable from objective sources (such as market heat rates, implied volatilities, and correlations).
Over-the-counter, complex, or structured derivative instruments that are transacted in less liquid
markets with limited pricing information would be included in Level 3.

(d) Valuation Techniques

The fair value measurement accounting guidance describes three main approaches to measuring the
fair value of assets and liabilities: (1) market approach, (2) income approach, and (3) cost approach.
The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated from market transactions
involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques
to convert future amounts to a single present value amount. The measurement is based on current
market expectations of the return on those future amounts.

The Company measures its interest rate swaps and energy derivatives at fair value on a recurring
basis. The fair value of its interest rate swaps derivatives is determined using the income approach by
a third-party treasury and risk management service. The service utilizes a standard model and
observable inputs to estimate the fair value of the interest rate swaps. The Company performs
analytical procedures and makes comparisons to other third-party information to assess the
reasonableness of the fair value. For commodity derivatives, fair values are determined based on
market observable inputs, which are validated using third-party sources, including forward price,
volatility, and interest rate curves. Credit valuation adjustments are made for estimated credit losses
based on the overall exposure to each counterparty. Fair value measurements of the Company’s
financial liabilities as of March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, based on the above
hierarchy, are as follows:

March 31, 2023
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)

Assets:
Derivative assets,
interest rate swaps 14,722 — 14,722 —
Total $ 14,722 — 14,722 —
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities,
energy $ 32,707 — 32,707 —
Total $ 32,707 — 32,707 —
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December 31, 2022

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands)

Assets:
Derivative assets,
interest rate swaps 18,688 — 18,688 —
Total $ 18,688 — 18,688 —
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities,
energy $ 58,205 — 58,205 —
Total $ 58,205 — 58,205 —
March 31, 2022
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)
Assets:
Derivative assets,
interest rate swaps 5,912 — 5,912 —
Total $ 5,912 — 5,912 —
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities,
interest rate swaps  $ 705 — 705
Derivative liabilities,
energy 53,383 — 53,383 —
Total $ 54,088 — 54,088 —

The Company issued letters of credit totaling $30.0 million, $36.5 million, and $36.5 million for the
periods ended March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, to counterparties in
conjunction with the commaodity derivatives. The Company has not posted any collateral to
counterparties in conjunction with the interest rate swaps with respect to the fair value of the swap
instruments.

For the periods ended March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, the Company did not
have any transfers between levels 1, 2 or 3.
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Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Interim Balance Sheets

The following tables present the balance sheet classification and fair value of derivative
instruments on the accompanying interim balance sheets as of:

March 31, December 31, March 31,
Balance sheet location 2023 2022 2022
(Inthousands)  (In thousands)  (In thousands)

Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815:

Interest rate swaps Current - derivative assets,

interest rate swaps $ 9,589 10,518 -
Interest rate swaps Long term - derivative assets,

interest rate swaps 5133 8,170 5912
Interest rate swaps Current - derivative liabilities,

interest rate swaps — - (705)

Total derivatives designated
as hedging instruments
under ASC 815 14,722 18,688 5,207

Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815;

Commodity swaps Current - derivative liabilities,
energy (981) - (30,569)
Commodity swaps Long term - derivative liabilities,
energy (31,726) (58,205) (22,814)
Total derivatives not
designated as hedging
instruments under
ASC 815, net (32,707) (58,205) (53,383)
Total derivatives, net $ (17,985) (39,517) (48,176)

Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Interim Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income

The following tables present the classification of the derivative instruments, which are designated
as hedging instruments, on the accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive
income for the periods ended March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022.
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The impact of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments:

At March 31, 2023

Location of Amount of
Amount loss loss Location of Amount of
of loss reclassified reclassified gain loss
recognized from from recognized recognized
in OCl on OCl into OCl into in income on in income on
derivative income income derivative derivative
(effective (effective (effective (ineffective (ineffective
Instruments portion) portion) portion) portion) portion)
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)
Interest rate swaps $ (1,469)  Interest expense, net (2,498)  Interest expense, net —
Total $ (1,469) (2,498) —
At December 31, 2022
Location of Amount of
Amount loss gain Location of Amount of
of gain reclassified reclassified gain loss
recognized from from recognized recognized
in OCl on OCl into OCl into in income on in income on
derivative income income derivative derivative
(effective (effective (effective (ineffective (ineffective
Instruments portion) portion) portion) portion) portion)
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)
Interest rate swaps $ 28,154 Interest expense, net 1,130 Interest expense, net —
Total $ 28,154 1,130 —
At March 31, 2022
Location of Amount of
Amount loss gain Location of Amount of
of gain reclassified reclassified gain loss
recognized from from recognized recognized
in OCl on OCl into OCl into in income on in income on
derivative income income derivative derivative
(effective (effective (effective (ineffective (ineffective
Instruments portion) portion) portion) portion) portion)
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)
Interest rate swaps $ 15,803 Interest expense, net (1,950) Interest expense, net —
Total $ 15,803 (1,950) —

(6) Electric Transmission and Interconnection

The Company is party to two Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreements (LGIAs), with
ISO-NE and a third party (Interconnecting Transmission Owner), which established the Facility’s required
electrical interconnection, necessary system upgrades, and associated transmission service. The
LGIAs have a twenty-year term commencing upon the effective dates of the LGIAs and shall be
automatically renewed for each successive one-year period thereafter. Under the LGIAs, the Company
incurred $69.2 million of costs associated with the construction of interconnection facilities, and upon
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their completion, the interconnection facilities were transferred to the Interconnecting Transmission
Owner. These costs are classified as Intangible assets, net on the accompanying interim balance
sheets. Amortization totaled $0.9 million for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022
and is included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim statements of operations
and comprehensive income. Amortization expense related to the years 2023 through 2027 is expected
to be approximately $3.5 million, annually.

(7) Project Agreements, Commitments and Contingencies

(a)

Natural Gas Transmission Agreements

The Company and a Gas Transmission Company (AGT) entered into the Reimbursement,
Construction, Ownership, and Operation Agreement (RCOOQ), for the construction of a new natural
gas delivery point on AGT’s existing 26-inch diameter mainline and 30-inch loop line upstream from
AGT’s Oxford compressor station (Gas Transmission Facilities) for use by the Facility. Pursuant to
the terms of the RCOO, the Company was responsible for the cost of the Gas Transmission
Facilities. Upon their completion, title conveyed to AGT. The cost of the Gas Transmission
Facilities is classified as Intangible assets, net on the accompanying interim balance sheets.
Amortization totaled $9 thousand for both three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022
and is included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income.

On July 17, 2018, Towantic entered a Service Agreement (SA) with AGT. The SA provides the
Company 2,500 MMBtu/day of firm gas transportation capacity at the AFT-1 tariff. The SA has an
initial term, which commenced on August 1, 2018 and extended to March 31, 2021. The term
extends for additional one-year increments unless terminated by either party. On August 23, 2022,
the Company extended the SA to March 31, 2025.

The Company incurred $0.0 million under the SA during both three-month periods ended March 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively, which was included in Fuel and other on the accompanying interim
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

On May 1, 2018, the Company entered an interruptible gas transportation contract (IGT). The IGT
does not obligate but allows Towantic to transport gas from IGT to AGT at interruptible
transmission rates.

During the three-month periods March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company incurred $64 thousand
and $131 thousand, respectively, of interruptible gas transportation costs, which was included in
Fuel and other on the accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive income.
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On January 29, 2021, Towantic entered a Gas Supply Agreement (GSA) with a gas supplier. The
GSA provides the Company a maximum of 115,000 MMBtus/day of firm natural gas. The GSA has
an initial term, which commenced on March 1, 2021 and extends to March 31, 2023. On

December 21, 2021, the Company amended the GSA (AGSA). The AGSA is priced using a defined
index and includes a minimum quantity of 50,000 MMBtus/day and 30.000 MMBtus/day of firm
natural gas between December 1, 2021 and February 28, 2022 and November 1, 2022 and

March 31, 2023, respectively. The Company incurred $43.7 and $118.5 million during the three-
month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

On November 30, 2022 Towantic entered into a natural gas supply arrangements with a gas
supplier (GSA2). Relevant terms of the arrangements with the Suppliers are documented in
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements. The GSA2 provides
the Company a maximum of 125,000 MMBtus/day of firm natural gas. The GSA2 has an initial
term, which will commence on April 1, 2023 and end on March 31, 2025. The Company incurred
$0.0 million during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

(b) Agreements with the Town of Oxford and Other Local Agencies

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Water Supply Agreement

The Company applied for and obtained a water service connection permit with a local water
authority. As part of obtaining the permit, the Company agreed to make system upgrades at its own
cost. These costs are classified as Intangible assets, net on the accompanying interim balance
sheets. Amortization totaled $3 thousand during each of the three-month periods ended March 31,
2023 and 2022 and is included in Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Tax Stabilization Agreement

The Company is party to an amended Tax Stabilization Agreement (ATSA) with a local township.
The ATSA requires the Company to make semiannual payments through 2038. During each of the
three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company incurred $0.8 million under the
ATSA, which is included in Taxes other than income taxes on the accompanying interim
statements of operations and comprehensive income. See the Commitments and Contingencies
table below in note 7 (d).

Community Support Agreement

The Company is party to an amended Community Support Agreement (ACS Agreement) with a
local township in order to support community programs. Pursuant to the terms of the ACS
Agreement, the Company is required to pay $1.1 million to the local township in 20 equal annual
instalments commencing on the fifth tax payment under the ATSA. During each of the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company incurred $13 thousand under the ACS,
which is included in Taxes other than income taxes on the accompanying interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income.

(c) Capacity ISO-NE Auctions

The Company sold 725 MW in Forward Capacity Auction (FCA) 9 at the clearing price of
$9.55/kW-mo., escalated by a defined index. As a new facility, the Company was awarded $9.55/kW
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per month price for seven years through FCA 15 in 2024/25. The Company sold 25.5 MW in FCA 11
for 2020/21 for $5.297/kW per month; in FCA 12 for 2021/22 for $4.631/kW per month; in FCA 13 for
2022/23 for $3.89/kW per month, and sold an additional 65 MW in FCA15 for 2024/2025 for $2.61/kW
per month. During the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized
revenue from capacity and power generation of $88.1 million and $157.7 million, respectively, which is
included in Operating revenues on the accompanying interim statements of operations and
comprehensive income.

Commitments and Contingencies

Purchase and other minimum commitments follow (in thousands and fiscal years starting from the
balance sheet date):

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Thereafter
Tax stabilization agreement $ 3,275 3,492 4,062 4,490 4,490 66,184
Asset management agreement —
related party 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,518 253
Contract service agreement 295 301 307 313 319 2,854
Operations and Maintenance 250 188 — — — —

Contractual Service Agreement

The Company is party to a Contractual Service Agreement (CSA) with the Original Equipment
Manufacturer (OEM) where the OEM provides scheduled and unscheduled outage maintenance parts
and services for the combustion turbine generators. The CSA has a term of 20 years. Under the CSA,
the Company is required to pay fixed and variable fees commencing upon a specified date.

During the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company incurred $2.2 million
and $2.1 million, respectively, under the CSA which are classified as Operating expenses on the
accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive income. See the Commitments and
Contingencies table above in note 7 (d).
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Operations and Maintenance Agreement

The Company is party to an operating and maintenance agreement (O&M Agreement) with a third
party (TP), in order to operate and maintain the Facility. The O&M Agreement has an initial term of
approximately three years commencing upon the operations of the Facility. On July 20, 2021, the
Company amended & restated the O&M Services Agreement (AO&M Agreement) to extend the terms
for another three years with a one-year renewal provisions option effective January 1, 2022. The
Company is required to pay TP a fixed annual management fee, an incentive bonus, and to reimburse
TP for all labor costs, including payroll and taxes, subcontractor costs, and other costs deemed
reimbursable under the AO&M Agreement and the O&M Agreement. Both the AO&M Agreement and the
O&M Agreement include one-year renewal provisions, which can be terminated by either party. The
Company incurred $1.4 million and $1.1 million under the AO&M Agreement and the O&M Agreement
for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which are classified as
Operating expenses on the accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive
income. The Company owed TP $0.5 million, $0.7 million and $0.4 million as of March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, which are included in Accounts payable and
accrued expenses on the accompanying interim balance sheets. See the Commitments and
Contingencies table above in note 7 (d).

(8) Related-Party Agreement

(a)

(b)

Asset Management Agreement

The Company is party to an amended asset management agreement (AMA) whereby Competitive
Power Ventures, Inc. (CPVI) provides construction and asset management related services. The AMA
has an initial term of ten years beyond the Facility’s substantial completion date and a renewal term of
an additional three years. The contract includes a fixed annual fee escalated annually by a defined
inflation index, an incentive fee, and the reimbursement of expenses. During the three-month periods
March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company incurred $0.5 million, under the AMA, which is included in
Operating expenses on the accompanying interim statements of operations and comprehensive
income.

The Company owed CPVI $0.2 million, $0.1 million, and $0.1 million as of March 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable and
accrued expenses on the accompanying interim balance sheets. See the Commitments and
Contingencies table above in note 7 (d).

Energy Management Agreement

The Company entered into an Energy Management Agreement (EMA) with CPV Energy and Marketing
Services, LLC (CEMS), dated September 30, 2020, to provide certain services related to the sale

of merchant energy, capacity and ancillary services, to replace Consolidated Edison Energy, Inc.
(ConEd) as the energy management service provider. The EMA commenced on April 1, 2021 and

will remain in effect through March 31, 2026. The EMA includes a five-year renewal provision, which
can be executed by the Company in its sole discretion up to two times. The EMA includes a fixed
monthly fee, plus reimbursement of expenses during the term of the agreement. The EMA also
provides reimbursement to CEMS for services provided by third parties on behalf of the Company.

The Company incurred $0.2 million under the EMA during the three-month periods ended March 31,
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2023 and 2022, which is classified as Operating expenses on the accompanying interim statements of
operations and comprehensive income. As of both March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and March 31,
2022 the Company owed CEMS $0.1 million, which is included in Accounts payable and accrued
expenses on the accompanying interim balance sheets.

(9) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between March 31, 2023 and May 18,
2023, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, for possible disclosure and
recognition in the financial statements.

There were no subsequent events identified that necessitated disclosure and or adjustment to the
Company’s interim financial statements for the three-months ended March 31, 2023.

28



	תוכן
	Slide 1: תוכן עניינים

	דוחות
	Slide 1: תמצית דוחות כספיים ביניים מאוחדים

	דוח
	Slide 1: דוח הדירקטוריון על מצב ענייני החברה

	מידע
	Slide 1: תמצית מידע כספי נפרד  המובא לפי תקנה 38ד' לתקנות ניירות ערך (דוחות תקופתיים ומיידים), התש"ל-1970 

	דוחות
	Slide 1: תמצית דוחות  כספיים ביניים  של חברות כלולות

	U_CPV Valley Holdings, LLC_20230519151902..pdf
	(1) Organization
	(a) Basis of Presentation
	(b) Use of Estimates
	(c) Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation Expense
	(d) Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets
	(e) Risks and Uncertainties
	(f) Income Taxes
	(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
	(h) Cash
	(i) Restricted Cash
	(j) Prepaid Expenses
	(k) Fuel Inventory
	(l) Emissions Inventory
	(m) Spare Parts Inventory
	(n) Intangible Assets
	(o) Deposits
	The Company’s deposits expected to be returned within twelve months are classified as Deposits, current totaled $0.0 million, $0.0 million, and $6.1 million at March 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and March 31, 2022, respectively.
	(p) Deferred Financing Costs
	(q) Derivative Instruments
	(r) Concentrations of Credit Risk
	(s) Commitments and Contingencies
	(t) Membership Interests
	(u) Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable
	(v) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
	Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Adopted)


	(2) Going Concern
	(3) Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net
	(4) Intangible Assets
	The Company recognized separately identifiable intangible assets related to the electrical interconnection, a water supply and sewer agreement required to operate the Facility and the purchase of emission offsets to comply with the Project’s air permi...
	Amortization of intangible assets totaled $168 thousand and $93 thousand during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is classified as Depreciation and amortization on the accompanying interim consolidated statemen...
	(5) Debt Facilities
	(6) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
	(a) Interest Rate Swaps
	(b) Commodity Derivatives
	(c) Fair Value Hierarchy
	(d) Additional Information Regarding Level 3 Measurements
	(e) Valuation Techniques
	(i) Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets
	(ii) Impact of Derivative Instruments on the Accompanying Interim Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income


	(7) Project Agreements, Commitments, and Contingencies
	(a) Transmission and Interconnection
	(i) Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreement
	(ii) Electrical Interconnect Agreements

	(b) Potable Water Supply Sewer Discharge Agreements
	(i) Township
	(ii) City

	(c) Tax Agreements
	(d) Other Municipal Agreements
	(e) Capacity Auctions and Bilateral Contracts
	(f) Long-Term Program Contract
	(g) Gas Supply Agreement
	(h) Gas Transportation Agreements
	(i) Commitments and Contingencies

	(8) Related Parties Agreements
	(a) Promissory Notes – Related Party
	(b) Asset Management Agreement
	(c) Operations and Maintenance Agreement
	(d) Energy Management Agreement

	(9) Subsequent Events
	U_CPV Valley Holdings, LLC_20230519151902.pdf
	Results of Review of Consolidated Interim Financial Information
	Basis for Review Results
	Substantial Doubt About the Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern
	Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Interim Financial Information
	Report on Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2022


	U_CPV Towantic, LLC_20230519151859..pdf
	U_CPV Towantic, LLC_20230519151859.pdf
	Results of Review of Interim Financial Information
	Basis for Review Results
	Responsibilities of Management for the Interim Financial Information
	Report on Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2022


	OPC-Q1-23-Cover-2.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	
	Slide Number 1


		2023-05-24T05:40:46+0000
	Not specified




